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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of

FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited,

(lithe Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of CashFlows

for the period ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information (hereinafter referred to as lithe financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind

AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified

under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs).Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics..We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial

statements.

Emphasis of Matter:

We draw attention to Note no.30 of the statement, which describes management's assessment of the impact

of the COVID19 pandemic on the financial results of the company.

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report

including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and

Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,

financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

accordance with the Ind ASand other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
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fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assessthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements

may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our

audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected

to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements,

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (lithe Order") issued by the Central

Government in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive Income,

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2021, taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified ason March 31, 2021, from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company

and the operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in "Annexure 8", Our

report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the

Company's financial controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

requirement of section 197(16) of the Act as amended:
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i. The Company has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration in accordance with

Provision of section 197 of Companies Act 2013

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanation given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations, which will have an impact on its

financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For NGS& CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 119850W

~
Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADR9810
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Annexure - A to the Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements" section of our report

to the Members of FlFl Travel Retail Bhubaneswar Private limited of even date.

i. The Company does not have any tangible fixed asset. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3 (i) is not

applicable to the Company.

ii. The Company is in the business of sub leasing properties and does not have any physical Inventory.

Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the, Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act").

Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(iii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and

investments made.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the period and does not have any

unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2021. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3{v) of the order is not

applicable to the Company.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed the

maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the business activities carried

out by the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of

undisputed statutory dues including Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material

statutory dues, as applicable, have been regularly deposited during the period by the company with

the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of

Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance and Custom Duty.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of Income tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears

as at March 31,2021, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of Income Tax

which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

viii. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from Financial Institutions, Banks or Government

or has not issued any debentures accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(viii) of the order is not

applicable to the Company.

ix. Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, the

Company has not taken any term loan. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(ix) of the order is not

applicable to the Company.
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X. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to

us, no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed

or reported during the course of our audit.

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the company, the Company has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration during the

period under audit. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xi) of the order is not applicable to the

Company.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a

Nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the

Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of

the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial

statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. Provisions of section 177 of Companies

Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the period.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or

persons connected with him. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable

to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 4S-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934.

For NGS& CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 1198S0W

~
Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADR9810
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Annexure - B to the Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements section of our report

to the Members of FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar

Private Limited ("the Company") asof March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements

of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls

over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by

ICAIand deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable

to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls

operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessedrisk. The procedures selected depend on

the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets

of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company

has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such

internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For NGS& CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 119850W

~
Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADR9810



FlFl Travel Retail Bhubaneswar Private limited

Balance Sheet As At March 31. 2021

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

A ASSETS

Non-Current assets

(a) Right to use leased hold assets 3 - 2,127.30

(b) Financial assets

(i) Loans 4 - 62.36

(c) Other Non Current assets 5 - 44.76

Total Non - Current Assets - 2.234.43

Current assets

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 6 129.61 50.46

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 22.26 56.31

(iii) Loans 8 111.28 -
(b) Other Current assets 9 102.04 84.58

Total Current Assets 365.18 191.36

Total Assets 365.18 2.425.78

B LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Equity

(a) Equity Share capital 10 1.00 1.00

(b) Other Equity 11 (108.78) (163.97)
Total equity (107.78) 1162.971

liabilities

Non-Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Other Financial Liabilities 12 - 133.38

(ii) Lease Liabilities 13 - 1,878.21

Total Non - Current liabilities - 2.011.59

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Short term borrowings 14 62.42 67.46

(ii) Trade Payables 15 257.70 181.05

(iii) Lease Liabilities 16 - 321.50

(iV) Other Financial Liabilities 17 133.38
(b) Other Current liabilities 18 19.46 7.15

Total Current Liabilities 472.96 577.1:6

•
Total Equity and liabilities 365.18 2,425.711

(,Rs. in lakhs)

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F. R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

~
Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472
Place: Mumbai

Date : June 23, 2021

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Lossfor year ended March 31. 2021.
Particulars Note No. FY2020-21 FY2019-20

REVENUE

(a) Revenuefrom operations 19 161.09 560.68
(b) Other Income 20 218.19 311.98
Total Revenue 379.28 872.66

EXPENSES

(a) Costof Services 21 - -
(b) Financecosts 22 15.34 255.72
(e) Depreciation 23 281.89 374.27
(d) Other expenses 24 26.85 11.73

Total Expenses 324.09 641.72

Profrt/(Ioss) before tax 55.18 230.94
TaxExpense 0.00 -
Profit/(Ioss) after tax 55.18 230.94
Other comprehensiveIncome(OCI)

Total comprehensive Income 55.18 230.94

Earningsper equity shareof FaceValue Rs. 10 each

(1) Basic 551.84 2,309.43
(2) Diluted 551.84 2,309.43

Asper our Report of evendate attached

ForNGS& Co LLP

CharteredAccountants

(F. R.No. 119850W)

Forand on behalf of Board of Directors

,

AshokA.Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472
Place: Mumbai

Date : June23, 2021

SureshSadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited

cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

A cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax 55_18 230.94

Adjusted For:

Non cash income and Expenses

Interest Income (0.34) (0.03)

FinanceCost 15.34 255.72

Depreciation & amortization 281.89 374.27

Deferred Expense 14.12 9.06

Deferred Interest Income (18.27) (6.88)

Remeasurement of LeaseLiabilities (178.03) (302.55)

Operating (Profit) Before Working capital Changes 169.90 560.53

Adjusted For:

ProceedsFromSecurity Deposit - 13.50

IncreaseOr (Decrease)in Other FinanCialLiabilities - (21.99)

IncreaseOr (Decrease)in Other Current Liabilities 12.31. 0.56

IncreaseOr (Decrease)in Trade Payables 76.65 51.13

(Increase)Or Decreasein Other Current Assets (83.36) (116.84)

(Increase)Or Decreasein Trade Receivables (79.15 (34.37)

cash Generated From Operations 96.35 452.52

Tax Paid 65.90 70.34

Net cash From Operating Activities 162.26 522.86

B cash Flow From Investing Activities

Interest Income 0.34 0.03

Net cash (Used In) Investing Activities 0.34 10.03

C cash Flow From Financing Activity

Proceedsfrom Issueof shares 0.00 -
Principal portion of the lease liability payment (186.14) (282.43)

Interest portion of the lease liability Payment 0.00 (250.60)

Proceedsfrom short Term Borrowings (10.51) 63.50

FinanceCost 0.00 (1.16)

Net cash Provided By Financing Activity (196.65) (470.69)

Net Increase in cash & cash Equivalerl1:S(A+B-+<) (34.05) 52.20

Opening Balanceof Cash& CashEquivalents 56.31 4.11

Closing Balanceof cash & cash Equivalent 22.26 56.31

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS& Co UP

Chartered Accountants

(F.R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ashok". Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June23, 2021

Suresh sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFL Travel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars FV 2020-21 FY 2019-20

A Equity Share Capital

(i) Opening Balance 1.00 1.00

(ii) Change During the Year

Issue Of Equity Share 0.00 0.00

Closing Balance 1.00 1.00

B Other Equity

Retained Earning

Opening Balance (163.97) (111.79)

Profit for the year 55.18 230.94

Impact on account of adoption of IND AS 116 - (283.12)

Closing Balance (108.78) (163.97)

Total Other Equity (108.78) (163.97)

fRs. in Lakhs)

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS&Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F. R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 23, 2021

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar Pvt. Ltd. (liThe Company") is a company incorporated in India under the

provisions of CompaniesAct, 2013 on May 30, 2018. The registered address of the Company is located at

Knowledge house, Shyamnagar,Off. Jogeshwari- Vikhroli link road, Jogeshwari (East)Mumbai - 400060.The

Company is engaged in the businessof sub leasing area at Bhubaneswar Airport. The Financial Statements

were approved for issueby the Board of Directors on June 23, 2021. The FinancialStatements are presented

in Indian Rupees({) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhsexcept where otherwise indicated.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

2.1. Basisof Preparation and Presentation

These FinancialStatements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

under the historical cost convention on the accrual basisexcept for certain financial instruments,

which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis.The accounting

policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets

and liabilities have been classifiedascurrent or non-current asper the Company's normal operating

cycle and other criteria asset out in the Division II of Schedule III to the CompaniesAct, 2013. Based

on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12

months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assetsand liabi'lities.

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items

included in the financial statements of the Companyare recorded usingthe currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Company operates (the 'functional currency').

2.2. Revenuerecognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with customer and

excludes amount collected on behalf of third parties including taxes. Revenue is recognized upon

transfer of control of promised product and services to customer in an amount that reflects the

consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those product or services.

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised as they are rendered based on

arrangements with the customers.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and

requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original

contract, basiswhich the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or

transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is

revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.
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Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognisedwhen it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is

accrued on a time basis,by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate

applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Information about major customers

Revenuearising from two customers amounted to Rs.82.16 lakhs,exceeding 10%of Revenuefrom

operations of the company.

Nameof Customer Revenuegenerated

(Rs.In lakhs)

Future Retail Limited Rs.46.98 lakhs

Travel RetailServicesPvt. Ltd. Rs.35.18 lakhs

AsCOVID-19emerged asan unprecedented blackswan event and dealt acrippling blow to the entire

travel and tourism industry, retail and food and beverage industry not only in India but linthe entire

world. The disruptions that it causedare acrossthe entire value chain i.e. airline, hotels, restaurants,

and a slew of other indirect providers and the same hasmade our businesscome to a grinding halt.

Though airports had partially opened, the customer movement had been drastically low and even

with these small numbers realistically there had been no salesasexpected. Thiswas due to the fact

that the customers are very reluctant and scared to buy at any outlet at the airport. Under these

current circumstances, it was very difficult even to cover basic costs like utilities and wages.There

was a huge operation losseven without Minimum Monthly ConcessionFeeand CAM charges.The

management therefore decided to terminate the LeaseAgreement

2.3. Taxes

Income tax expensesrepresents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The

Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assetsand

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basesused in the computation of

taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax

assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profits will be available against those deductible temporary differences which

can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary

difference rises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and

liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In

addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arisesfrom the initial

recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the assetto be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assetsare measured at the

tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability issettled or the asset realised,

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax

consequencesthat would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assetsand liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss,except when they relate to

items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the

current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

2.4. lease
The Company asa lessee

Ind AS 116 requires lesseesto determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease.

adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably

certain. The Company makesan assessmenton the expected lease term on a lease-bv-leasebasis

and thereby assesseswhether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the

contract will be exercised. In evaluating the leaseterm, the Company considers factors such asany

significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the

termination of the leaseand the importance of the underlying assetto company's operations taking

into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The

lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current

economic circumstances.

The Company's lease asset classesprimarily consist of leasesfor spaces.The Company assesses

whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if

the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration. To assesswhether a contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset,the Companyassesseswhether: (i) the contract involves the useof an identified

asset (ii) the Company hassubstantially all of the economic benefits from useof the asset through
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the period of the leaseand (iii) the Company hasthe right to direct the useof the asset.At the date

of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a

corresponding lease liability for all leasearrangements in which it is a lessee,except for leaseswith

a term of 12months or less(short-term leases)and low value leases.For these short-term and low

value leases,the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight

line basisover the term of the lease.

Leasearrangement includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the

leaseterm. ROUassetsand lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that

they will be exercised.

The ROUassets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease

liability adjusted for any leasepayments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease

plus any initial direct costs lessany lease incentives..They are subsequently measured at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROUassetsare depreciated from the commencement date on astraight-line basisover the shorter

of the leaseterm and useful life of the underlying asset. ROUassetsare evaluated for recoverability

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be

recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the

fair value lesscost to sell and the value-in-use) isdetermined on an individual asset basisunlessthe

asset does not generate cashflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such

cases,the recoverable amount isdetermined forthe CashGenerating Unit (CGU)to which the asset

belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease

payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not

readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these

leases.Leaseliabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROUasset if

the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination

option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified asfinancing cashflows.

The Company asa Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leasesas an operating lease. The

Company recognisesleasepayments received under operating leasesas income. The Company is an

intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It

assessesthe leaseclassification of a sub-leasewith reference to the right-of-use asset arising from

the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to

which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifiesthe sub-lease as an

operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115

Revenuefrom contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.
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2.5. Earningsper share

Basicearnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to the owners of the

Company by the weighted average number of equity sharesoutstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in determination of basicearnings per share to

take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated'with

dilutive potential equity shares,and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that

would have been outstanding assumingthe conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.6. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of

qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarilytake a substantial period of time to get ready

for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time asthe assets

are substantially ready for their intended useor sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

2.7. Provisions,contingent liability and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or

constructive obligation that can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by

discounting (when the effect of the time value of money ismaterial) the expected future cash~ows

at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmentsof the time value of money and the risks

specific to the liability.

Contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or it is probable but no reliable

estimate is possible. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in financial statements however

disclosed.Similarly, contingent assetsare not recognised however disclosed.

2.8. Financial instruments

Financialassetsand financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial instruments comprise of financial assetsand financial liabilities. Financialassetsprimarily

comprise of Loans, Deposits, Trade Receivablesand Cashand Bank balances. Financial liabil'ities

primarily comprise ofTrade and Other Payables.

Financialassetsand financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets/ issueof financial liabilities are added to

the fair value of the financial assets/ subtracted from fair value of financial liabilities on initial

recognition, except for financial asset/ liability issubsequently measured at fair value through profit

or loss.
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Subsequent measurement

Financialassetsand financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition all financial assets (other than investment in equity instruments and

derivative instruments) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. All financial liabilities (other than derivative liabilities), subsequently after initial

recognition, are measured at amortised cost usingeffective interest method. TheCompany hasnot

designated any financial asset or financial liability as fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").

Impairment offinancial asset

The Company applies the expected credit lossmodel for recognising impairment loss on financial

assetsmeasured at amortised cost, Trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash

or other financial asset.

Expectedcredit lossesare the weighted averageof credit losseswith the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are

due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company

expects to receive (i.e. all cashshortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the

lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly

since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since

initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an

amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

For trade receivables, the Company measures the 'lossallowance at an amount equal to lifetime

expected credit losses.

Derecognition of financial asset

The Companyderecognises a financial assetwhen the contractual rights to the cashflows from the

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another partv.

2.9. Operating Segment

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments', the Company's

businessactivity falls within a single operating segment, namely Spaceleasing.

2.10. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

In the course of applying the accounting policies, the Company is required to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assetsand liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects

current and future periods.
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The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate

valuation techniques and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair

values.

2.11. Fair Value Measurements

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting

purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company usesmarket-observable

data to the extent it is available.Where levell inputs are not available, the-Companyengagesthird

party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate

valuation techniques and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair

values.
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Notes To Financial Statements

Note 3 : Right to use leased hold assets
I I

Right to use leased hold assets 2,127.30
Total 2,127.30

Note 4 : Loans
,,,.

Unsecured and considered good
Security Deposits I I 62.36

Total I I 62.36

Note S : Other Non Current Assets
I I

Prepaid Exp.-Deferred lease expense 1 I 44.76
Total T - I

Note 6 Trade Receivables
Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020
Unsecured and considered good
Outstanding for a period of more than Sixmonths from the date they are due for payment 25.56 6.69
Other Debtors considered good 104.39 43.77
Doubtful (0.35)

Total 129_61 50_46

Note 7 : Cash and Cash Equivalent

Balances with Bank
On current Account I

I

22.26T
I I

56.31
Total I 22.26T 56.31

Note 8 : Loans

Total

~:tffiMlwtSecurity Deposits

Note 9 : Other Current Assets
I I

·Other Current assets 1 102.04 I 84.58
Total 1 102.04 I 84.S8
·Indudes statutory dues

Note 10 Equity Share Capital
Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

Authorised
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. 10,000 1.00 10,000 . 1.00

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Ul!
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00



(a) Reconciliation of number of shares:
Particulars Asat March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

No. of Shares No. of Shares
At the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Add: Issued during the year - -
At the end of the year 10,000 10,000

(b) Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value Rs. 10/- each. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote
per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5"
shares in the Company:

Name of Shareholders As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020
No. of Shares held " of Holding No. of Shares held " of Holding

Future Ufestyle Fashions Umited 5,100.00 51" - 5,100.00 51"
Travel Retail Services Private Umited 4,900.00 49% 4,900.00 49%
Total 10,000.00 100% 10,000.00 100%

(d) Shared held by holding Company: Nil

Note 11 : Other Equity
Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance (163.97) (111.79)
Profit for the year 55.18 230.94
Impact on account of adoption of INDAS 116 - (283.12)
Closing Balance (108.78) (163.97)

Total (108.78 (163.97)

Note 12 : Other Financial Uabilities
I I

Security Deposits
Other Payabies

133.38

Total 133.38

Note 13 : lease Uability (Non Current)
I I

Lease liability on leased hold assets 1,878.21.
Total 1,878.21

Note 14 : Short term borrowings
I I

Inter corporate deposits 62.42 67.46
Total 62.42 67.46

Note 15 : Trade Payables
I I

Trade Payables I 257.70 I 181.05
Total I 257.70 I 181.05

Note 16 : lease Uability (Current)
I I

Lease liability on leased hold assets I I 321.50
Total I -I 321.50



~iiMM
security Deposits

Note 17 : Other Financial Uabilities

Total

'''If&hi'''HJ*i''iM\ffiii''WI~133.38 -
U3.38 -

Note 18 : Other Current Uabilities

Provision for Expenses

Other Pavables" 1
19.331
0.13

2.41
4.74

I I

Total 1 19.461 7.15
"includes statutory dues

Note 19 : Revenue form Operations

I I I • I

Sub Concession Fees 161.09 560.68
Total 161.09 560.68

Note 20 Other Income

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY2019-20
Interest Income

. 30.96 6.91
Interest on Income Tax Refund 1.35
Remeasurement of Lease Uabilities 178.03 302.55
Other Income 7.86 2.52
Total 218.19 311.98

Note 21 Cost of Services

~iiM!11 H~'!l·11

-I
IIl·lall·

-I
~ncession Fees

Total

Note 22 : Finance Costs

I I I I
Interest Expenses 15.34 255.72
Total 15.34 255.72

Note 23 : Depreciation

I I I
Depreciation of ROUA 281.89 374.27
Total 281.89 374.27

Note 24 Other Expenses

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY2019-20
Rates & Taxes (BG Commission and ROC) - -
Deferred Lease Exp. 14.12 9.06
Prov.-Doubtful Debts 0.35
Auditor's Remuneration

-Statutory Audit 0.50 0.50
-Other services 0.90 0.80

Miscellaneous Expenses 10.99 1.37
Total 26.85 11.73
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25. Computation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Shares

Units 2020-21 2019-20
Profit after tax Rs.in lakhs 55.18 230.94

TheWeighted average number of Equity shares
No. 10000 10000

for Basicand Diluted EPS

Earningsper Equity share (Basic& Diluted) Rs.In lakhs 551.84 2309.43

26. Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116, Leases and applied the standard to the lease

contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative

adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the

lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and

the ROUasset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of

the lease, but discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and

therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report

for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' assetof Rs.2030.14

Lakhs& a lease liability of Rs.2313.26 Lakhs.The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting to

Rs.283.12 Lakhswas debited to retained earnings, net of taxes.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leasesof similar assets in similar economic environment

with a similar end date

2. Excludedthe initial direct costs from the measurement of the ROUassetat the date of initial application.

3.Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.

Accordingly, Ind AS116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leasesunder Ind AS17.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities asat April 1, 2019 is 11.50%.

The changes in the carrying value of ROUassetsfor the year ended March 31, 2021 are asfollows:

Rs In Lakhs

\
1

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Opening ROUAssets 2,127.30 2,030.14

Addition - -
Deletion - .

Depreciation Duri ng The Year (281.89) (374.27)

Remeasurements of Lease Liabilities during the Year (1,845.41) 471.43

aosing ROUAssets - 2,127.30
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The aggregate depreciation expense on ROUassetsis included under depreciation and amortization

expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 is as follows

Rs InLakhs

Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

LeaseLiabilities (Current) - 321.'50

LeaseLiabilities (Non-Current) - 1,878.21

Total - 2,199.71

The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Rs In Lakhs

PartiCluiars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Opening lease Liabilities 2,199.71 2,313.26

lnterest Costduring the Year 9.87 250.60

Remesuirements of lease Liabilities during the Year (2,023.44) 168.88

Minimum Lease Payment (186.14) (533.03)

aasing LeaseUabilities - 2,199.71

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets

are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities asand when they fall due.

27. Related Party Disclosure

As required under Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are given below:

I. List of Related Parties

A. Investee Companies

a) Future Lifestyle FashionsLimited

b) Travel Retail ServicesPrivate Limited

B. Fellow Subsidiaries

a) Future Speciality Retail Limited

b)' FLFLTravel RetailWest Private Limited

c) FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited

d) FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Private Limited
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(Ii) Transaction with related Parties (Rs. In Lakhs)

Future FLFL

Lifestyl Travel Retail future FLFLTravel Travel

Nature of Transactions
CY/P e Services Speciality Retail West Retail

y Fashion Private Retail Private Guwahati

s Limited Limited Limited Private

Limited Limited

SubConcession Income CY - 35.18 15.31 - -
PY (111.71) (49.56)

Reim. of ExpensesReed. CY - 2.11 0.71 - -
PY (2.94) (1.04)

LoansGiven CY - - - - 10.00

PY - uz.oo;
LoansGiven Reed.Back CY - - - - 10.00 '

PY - (12.00)

Interest Income on Loan CY - - - - 0.34

PY - {0.031.

LoanTaken CY - - - - -
PY (68.50) (21.00)

LoanTaken RepaidBack CY - - - 9.50 -
PY (5.00) ,(21.00)

Interest Expon Loantaken CY - - - 5.47 -
PY - - - (6.04) , (0.56)

Receivableas at March

31st CY - 19.20 (3.04) - -

PY - (7.26) . (0.07) - -

Payableas at March 31st CY 83.68 46.08 - 62.42 -

PY (83.68) (46.08) - (67.46) -
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28. Capital Management

The Companymanagesits capital to ensure that it will be able to continue asgoing concern while maximizing

the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.The capital structure of

the Company consists equity of the Company (comprising issued capital & retained earnings).The Company

monitors capital using a ratio of 'net debt' to equity. The Company hasShort Term debt of Rs.62.42 lakhsas

at 31st March 2021
(In lakhs):

Particulars Asat Marc~ Asat Mard
31,2021 31, 2t!)2~

Total debt 62.42 67.46
f-------- ..----.------.-.---.--- ....--------..------ ...-. - ..-.- 56.31Less: cash and bank balances 22.26

Net debt 40.16 11.15
..._----- ..----_.__ .._--_-1-._- _ ..__ ..-

Equity (107.78) (163.97)

Net debt to equity ratio (0.37) (0.07)

Categoriesof financial instruments

(In lakhs)

Particulars As at March As at March 31,

31,2021 2020

Financialassets

,_ill. Measured at Amortized C<>:St

Cashand bank balances 22.26 56..31
Trade Receivables 129.61 50.46
1-----
(ii) Me~su~d at FairValue --_--
Loans 111.28 62.36

Financial liabilities

[I) Measured at Amortized Value

Trade Payables 257.70 181.05
LeaseLiabilities - 2199.71
Inter Corporate Deposits ..._---_ .._- 62.42 67.46--------_--_ 1----------
Other Financial Liability 133.38 133.38

29. FinancialRiskManagement objectives

Riskmanagement policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions

and the Company's activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate

the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

• Interest rate risk
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Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. As on March 31'\ 2021 company is not

exposed to Interest rate Risk

• Uquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will fail in meeting its obligations associated with its

financial liabilities. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have

sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.The Company

monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet

operational needs.

30. Pre-Closureof ConcessionAgreement with Airports Authority of India, Bhubaneswar

AsCOVID-19emerged asan unprecedented black swan event and dealt a crippling blow to the entire travel

. and tourism industry, retail and food and beverage industry not only in India but in the entire world. The

disruptions that it causedare acrossthe entire value chain i.e. airline, hotels, restaurants, and aslew of other

indirect providers and the samehasmadeour businesscome to agrinding halt. Though airports had partially

opened, the customer movement had been drastically low and even with these small numbers realistically

there had been no sales as expected. This was due to the fact that the customers are very reluctant and

scared to buy at any outlet at the airport. Under these current circumstances, it was very difficult even to

cover basic costs like utilities and wages.There was a huge operation losseven without Minimum Monthly

ConcessionFeeand CAMcharges.

In the view of currently high commercials and continuing uncertainties postCorona pandemic and difficulties

to retain existing Sub-Concessionaires,Company taken a decision to Exit from the ConcessionAgreement

with Airports Authority of India, Bhubaneswar byJanuarynnd, 2021. ATermination Notice hasbeen served

to Airports Authority of India, Bhubaneswar

Company have an option to rebid with Airports Authority of India, Bhubaneswar in line with salesprojections

post Covid-19 to re-commence businessoperations with revised commercials. The decisions shall be taken

by Management in due course.

As per our report of even date attached

For NGS& Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F.R.No.:119850W)

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Ashok A.Trivedi

Partner

Membership No.: 042472

~.-~~~

SureshSadhwani

Director

DIN-07766644

~tV'\~
Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN-05283630

Mumbai

June 23, 2021.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of

FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FLFLTravel Retail Gu ahati Private Limited, ("the

Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet asat March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss(including

Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the

period ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting pol cies and other explanatory

information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind

AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified

under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs).Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial

statements.

Emphasis of Matter:

We draw attention to Note no.30 of the statement, which describes management's assessment of the impact

of the COVID19 pandemic on the financial results of the company.

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate.

B ·46, 3rt!Floor, Pravasi Estate, V N Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai ·400063.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report

including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and

Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is

to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,

financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

accordance with the Ind ASand other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assessthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements

may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our

audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected

to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (tithe Order") issued by the Central

Government in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure- A" a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the

statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued there under.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2021, and taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and

the operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in "Annexure 8" our report

express an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company's

financial control over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with requirement of section 197(16) of the Act as amended:

i. The Company has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration in accordance with

Provision of section 197 of Companies Act 2013
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanation given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations, which will have an impact on its

financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For NGS & CO. LLP.

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADS3069
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Annexure - A to the Auditor's Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the FlFL Travel Retail Guwahati

Private Limited on the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2021, we report that:

i. The Company does not have any tangible fixed asset. Therefore, provision of paragraph 3(i) of fle

order are not applicable. I

ii. The Company is in the business of sub leasing properties and does not have any physical Inventory.

Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the, Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

Therefore, paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and

investments made.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the period and does not have any

unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2021. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(v) of the order is not

applicable to the Company.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed the

maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the business activities carried

out by the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect' of

undisputed statutory dues including Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material

statutory dues, as applicable, have been regularly deposited during the period by the company with

the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of

Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance and Custom Duty.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of Income tax, Goods and Service Tax, cessand other material statutory dues were in arrears

as at March 31,2021, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of Income Tax

which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

viii. The company has not taken any loans or Borrowings from Financial Institution, Banks or Government

or has not issued any debentures Therefore, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

ix. Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, te

Company has not taken any term loan, so paragraph 3(ix) of the order is not applicable. c.

B - 46, 3m Floor, Pravasi Estate, V N Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063.
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x. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to

us, no fraud by the Company or the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported

during the course of our audit.

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the company, the Company has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration in accordance

with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Therefore paragraph 3(xi) of the

order not applicable.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a

nidhi company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of

the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial

statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provision of section 177 of

Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the period.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or

persons connected with him. Therefore, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 4S-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934.

For NGS & CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 1198S0W

~-
Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AMADS3069
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Annexure - B to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 (lithe Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FlFl Travel Retail Guwahati Private

limited (lithe Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the

Company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by

ICAIand deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable

to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessedrisk. The procedures selected depend on

the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets

of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at

March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For NGS& CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 119850W

~
Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADS3069



;

FLFl Travel Retail Guwahati Private limited

Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2021

fRs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

A ASSETS

Non-Current assets

(a) Right to use leased hold assets 3 - 4,858

(b) Financial assets

(i) Loans 4 - 91.22

(c) Other Non Current assets 5 - 74.29

Total Non - Current Assets - 5,023.76

Current assets

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 6 245.33 127.78

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 36.33 5.43

(iii) Short term advances 8 25.53 160.05

(iv)Loans 9 170.18 -
(b) Other Current assets 10 145.27 141.57

Total Current Assets 622.64 434.84

Total Assets 622.64 5,458.60

B LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Equity

(a) Equity Share capital 11 1.00 1.00

(b) Other Equity 12 133.13 (31.99)

Total equity 134.13 (30.99

Liabilities

Non-Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Other Financial Liabilities 13 - 222.14

(ii) Lease Liabilities 14 - 4,218.14

Total Non - Current liabilities - 4,440.27

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade Payables 15 233.23 294.88

(ii) tease Liabilities 16 - 722.04

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 222.14 -

(b) Other Current liabilities 18 33.15 32.40

Total Current Liabilities 488.51 1,049.32

Total Equity and Liabilities 622.64 5,458.60

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F. R. No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 23, 2021

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630
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FlFL Travel Retail Guwahati Private limited

Statement of Profrt and loss for year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars
Note No.

FY2020-21 FY2019-20

REVENUE

(a) Revenue from operations 19 349.77 1,152.70
(b) Other Income 20 351.05 539.21'
Total Revenue 700.82 1691.92

EXPENSES

(a) Cost of Services 21 - -
(b) Finance costs 22 18.59 522.59·
(e) Depreciation 23 458.23 742.25
(d) Other expenses 24 31.11 20.13

Total Expenses 507.93 1284.97

Proflt/(Ioss) before tax 192.89 406.94
Tax Expense 27.77 18.58

Profit/(Ioss) after tax 165.12 '388.36
Other comprehensive Income(OCI)

Total comprehensive Income 165.12 388.36

Earnings per equity share of Face Value Rs. 10 each

(1) Basic 1,651.23 3,883.60
(2) Diluted 1,651.23 3,883.60

'Rs . l kh

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS& Co UP

Chartered Accountants

(F. R. No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ashok A.Trivedi

Partner

M.No 042472
Place: Mumbai

Date : June 23, 2021

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

VipulParikh

Director

DIN :05283630



FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Private Limited

CashFlow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

A cash Flow FromOperating Activities

Net Profit BeforeTax 192.89 406.94

Adjusted For:

Non cash income and Expenses

Interest Income (7.07) (14.28)

FinanceCost 18.59 522.59

Depreciation & Amortization 458.23 742.25

Deferred Expense 20.78 12.96

Deferred Interest Income (25.45) (9.40)

Remeasurementof lease liabilities (284.23) (513.40)

Operating (Profit) Before Working Capital Changes 373.73 1147.66

Adjusted For:

ProceedsFromSecurity Deposit 0.00 0.00

IncreaseOr (Decrease)in Other Financial liabilities 0.00 27.39

IncreaseOr (Decrease)in Other Current liabilities (27.02) 21.19

IncreaseOr (Decrease)in Trade Payables (61.65) 113.13

(Increase)Or Decreasein Other Current Assets (127.45) (238.00)'

(Increase)Or Decreasein Trade Receivables (117.55) (105.88)

CashGenerated FromOperations 40.05 96S.48

TaxPaid 123.76 118.49

Net <:ashFromOperating Activities 163.81 1083.98

B CashFlow From Investing Activities

Interest Income 7.07 6.23

Short Term Advances 134.52 (152.00)

Net Cash(Used In) Investing Activities 141.59 (145.77)

C CashFlow FromFinancingActivity

Proceedsfrom Issueof shares 0.00 0.00

Principal portion of the lease liability payment (255.92) (483.19)

Interest portion of the lease liability Payment (18.07) (522.56)

FinanceCost (0.52) (0.03)

Net CashProvided By FinancingActivity (274.51) (1005.79)

Net Increase in cash & cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 30.90 (67.58)

Opening Balanceof Cash& CashEquivalents 5.43 73.01

ClosingBalanceof cash & CashEquivalent 36.33 5.43

Asper our Report of even date attached

ForNGS&ColLP

Chartered Accountants

(F.R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

AshokA. Trivedi
Partner

M.No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 23, 2021

SureshSadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Private Limited

Statement of Changesin Equity For the year ended March 31, 2021

fRs. in lakhs)

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

A Equitv Share Capital

(i) Opening Balance 1.00 1.00
(ii) ChangeDuring the Year

IssueOf Equity Share 0.00 0.00

Closing Balance 1.00 1.00

B Other Equity

Retained Earning

Opening Balance (31.99) (84.08)
Profit for the year 165.12 388.36

I Impact on account of adoption of INDAS116 . 133&.27)

Oosing Balance 133.13 (31.99)

Total Other Equity 133.13 (31.99)

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS & CoLLP

Chartered Accountants

(F. R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 23, 2021

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: On66644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Private Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUTTHECOMPANY

FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Pvt. Ltd. ('The Company") is a company incorporated in India under the

provisions of CompaniesAct, 2013 on May 30,2018. The registered address of the Company is located at

Knowledge house,Shyamnagar,Off. Jogeshwari- Vikhroli link road, Jogeshwari (East)Mumbai - 400060.The

Company is engaged in the businessof sub leasingarea at Guwahati Airport. The FinancialStatements were

approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 23, 2021. The Financial Statements are presented in

Indian Rupees(~)and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhsexcept where otherwise indicated.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

2.1. Basis of Preparation and Presentation

These FinancialStatements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

under the historical cost convention on the accrual basisexcept for certain financial instruments,

which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis.The accounting

policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets

and liabilities have been classifiedascurrent or non-current asper the Company's normal operating

cycle and other criteria asset out in the Division II of Schedule III to the CompaniesAct, 2013. Based

on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12

months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assetsand liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items

included in the financial statements of the Companyare recorded usingthe currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Company operates (the 'functional currency').

2.2. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with customer and

excludes amount collected on behalf of third parties including taxes. Revenue is recognized upon

transfer of control of promised product and services to customer in an amount that reflects the

consideration we expect to receive in exchangefor those product or services.

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised as they are rendered based on

arrangements with the customers.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and

requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original

contract, basiswhich the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or

transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is

revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.
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FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Private Limited

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is

accrued on a time basis,by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate

applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Information about major customers

Revenuearising from two customers amounted to RS.145.55lakhs,exceeds 10%of Revenuefrom

operations of the company

Name of Customer Revenue generated (Rs. In
lakhs) -

Future Retail Limited Rs.74.64Iakhs.

Travel RetailServicesPvt. Ltd. Rs.70.91 lakhs.

2.3. Taxes

Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The

Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assetsand

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of

taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax

assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is

probable thattaxable profits will be available against those deductible temporary differences which

can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary

difference rises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and

liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In

addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arisesfrom the initial

recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the assetto be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assetsare measured at the

tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability issettled or the asset realised,

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
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consequencesthat would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss,except when they relate to

items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the

current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equltv

respectively.

2.4. Lease

The Company asa lessee

Ind AS116 requires lesseesto determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease

adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably

certain. The Company makes an assessmenton the expected lease term on a lease-by-Ieasebasis

and thereby assesseswhether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the

contract will be exercised. In evaluating the leaseterm, the Company considers factors such asany

significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the

termination of the leaseand the importance of the underlying assetto company's operations taking

into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The

lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current

economic circumstances.

The Company's lease asset classesprimarily consist of leases for spaces.The Company assesses

whether a contract contains a lease,at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if

the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration. To assesswhether a contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset,the Companyassesseswhether: (i) the contract involves the useof an identified

asset (ii) the Company hassubstantially all of the economic benefits from use of the assetthrough

the period of the leaseand (iii) the Company hasthe right to direct the useof the asset.At the date

of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a

corresponding lease liability for all leasearrangements in which it isa lessee,except for leaseswith

a term of 12months or less(short-term leases)and low value leases.Forthese short-term and low

value leases,the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight

line basisover the term of the lease.

Leasearrangement includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the

leaseterm. ROUassetsand leaseliabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that

they will be exercised.

The ROUassets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease

liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease

plus any initial direct costs lessany lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROUassetsare depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basisover the shorter

of the leaseterm and useful life of the underlying asset. ROUassetsare evaluated for recoverability

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be

recoverable. For-the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
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fair value lesscost to sell and the value-in-use) isdetermined on an individual asset basisunlessthe

asset does not generate cashflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such

cases,the recoverable amount is determined for the CashGenerating Unit (CGU)to which the asset

belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease

payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in thelease or, if not

readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these

leases.Leaseliabilities are remeasured with acorresponding adjustment to the related ROUasset if

the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination

option.

Lease liability and ROUassets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified as financing cashflows.

The Company asa Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifieseach of its leasesas an operating lease. The

Company recognises lease payments received under operating leasesas income. The Company lis

an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head leaseand the sub-leaseseparately. It

assessesthe leaseclassification of a sub-leasewith reference to the right-of-use asset arising from

the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease te

which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an

operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115

Revenuefrom contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

2.5. Earnings per share

Basicearnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to the owners of the

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in determination of basic earnings per share to

take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associatedwith

dilutive potential equity shares,and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that

would have been outstanding assumingthe conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.6. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of

qualifying assets, which are assetsthat necessarilytake a substantial period of time to get ready

for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets

are substantially ready for their intended useor sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.
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2.7. Provisions, contingent liability and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or

constructive obligation that can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by

discounting (when the effect of the time value of money ismaterial) the expected future cashflows

at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmentsof the time value of money and the risks

specific to the liability.

Contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or it is probable but no reliable

estimate is possible. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in financial statements however

disclosed. Similarly, contingent assetsare not recognised however disclosed.

2.8. Financial instruments

Financialassetsand financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial instruments comprise of financial assetsand financial liabilities. Financialassetsprimarily

comprise of Loans, Deposits, Trade Receivablesand Cashand Bank balances. Financial liabilities

primarily comprise ofTrade and Other Payables.

Financialassetsand financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets/ issue of financial liabilities are added to

the fair value of the financial assets/ subtracted from fair value of financial liabilities on initial

recognition, except for financial asset! liability issubsequently measured at fair value through profit

or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financialassetsand financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition all financial assets (other than investment in equity instruments and

derivative instruments) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. All financial liabilities (other than derivative liabilities), subsequently after initial

recognition, are measured at amortised cost usingeffective interest method. The Company has not

designated any financial asset or financial liability as fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").

Impairment offinancial asset

The Company applies the expected credit lossmodel for recognising impairment loss on financial

assetsmeasured at amortised cost, Trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash

or other financial asset.

Expectedcredit lossesare the weighted averageof credit losseswith the respective risksof default

occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are

due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company

expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the

lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly

since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
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initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an

amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

For trade receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime

expected credit losses.

Derecognition of financial asset

The Companyderecognisesa financial assetwhen the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another party.

2.9. Operating Segment

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments', the Company's

businessactivity falls within a single operating segment, namely Spaceleasing.

2.10. Keysourcesof estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

In the course of applying the accounting policies, the Company is required to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assetsand liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects

current and future periods.

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate

valuation techniques and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair

values.

2.11. FairValue Measurements

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting

purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company usesmarket-observable

data to the extent it is available.Where Levell inputs are not available, the Company engagesthird

party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate

valuation techniques and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair

values.
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Notes To FinancialStatements

Note 3 : Right to use leased hold assets

I I

Rightto use leasedhold assets 1 - 1 4,858.25 1

Total 1 - 1 4,858.25 1

Note 4 : loans

I I

Unsecuredand consideredgood

Security Deposits 1 -I 91.22

Total 1 1 91.22

Note 5 : Other Non Current Assets

I I

PrepaidExp.-Deferredleaseexpense I - I 74.29

Total 1 - 1 74.29

Note 6 : Trade Receivables

Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

Unsecuredand consideredgood

Outstanding for a period of more than Sixmonths from the date they are due for payment

Other Debtors consideredgood

Doubtful

17.73

228.82

(1.23)

4.90
122.88

Total 245.33 ' 127.78

Note 7 : Cashand CashEquivalent

I I

Balanceswith Bank

On current Account 1 36.33 1 5.43

Total I 36.331 5.43

Note 8 : Short term advances

I t

Unsecuredand consideredgood

Inter corporate deposits 1 25.531 160.05

Total 1 25.531 160.05

Note 9 . loans (Current)

I I I

SecurityDeposits 1 170.181 -

Total 1 170.181 -

Note 10 : Other Current Assets
,

I I I

'Other Current assets 1 145.27 1 141.57

Total 1 145.271 141.57

'Includes statutory dues
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Note 11 Equity ShareCapital

Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

Authorised

10,000 EquitySharesof Rs.10/-each. 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

Issued,Subscribedand Paid UI!
10,000EquitySharesof Rs.l0/- each fully paid up 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares:

Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

No. of Shares No. of Shares

At the beginningof the year 10,000 10,000

Add: Issuedduring the year - -

At the end of the year 10,000 10,000

(b) Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares

The Companyhasonly one classof sharesreferred to asequity shareshaving par value Rs.10/- each. Eachholder of equity share isentitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company,the holdersof equity shareswill be entitled to receivethe remaining assetsof the Companyafter distribution of

preferential amounts. Thedistribution will be in proportion of the number of equity sharesheld by the shareholders.

(d) Sharedheld by holding Company: NIL

Note 12 Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31,2021 Asat March 31,2020

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance (31.99) (84.08)

Profit for the year - 388.36

Impact on account of adoption of INDAS116 - (336.27)

ClosingBalance (31.99) (31.99)

Total (31.99) (31.99

Note 13 : Other Financial Liabilities (Non Current)

11.{1.

Security Deposits 1 - .1 222.14

Total I -I 222.14

Note 14 : LeaseLiability (Non Current)
I •

Leaseliability on leasedhold assets I - 1 4,218.14

Total 1 -I 4,218.14

Note lS : Trade Payables
I I

Trade Payables I 233.23 1 294.88

Total 1 233.231 294.88



Note 16 : Lease Liability (Current)

I I

Leaseliability on leasedhold assets I I 722.04

Total 1 -I 722.04

Note 17 : Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

I I

SecurityDeposits 1 222.141

Total 1 222.141

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars Asat March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

Provisionfor Expenses 4.69 3.42

Provisionfor TaxAY2020-21 27.77 18.58

Other Payables· 0.69 10.40

Total 33.15 32.40

·lncludes statutory dues

Note 19 : Revenueform Operations

I I I • I

SubConcessionFees 349.77 1152.70

Total 349.77 1,152.70

Note 20 Other Income

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Interest Income 54.04 23.68

Interest on IncomeTaxRefund 1.82

Remeasurementof LeaseLiabilities 284.23 513.40

Other Income 10.96 2.13

Total 351.05 539.21

~4fii@jM
ConcessionFees

Note 21 : Costof Services

- -i t'J"GI"
- - iTotal

Note 22 : FinanceCosts

I I I • I

Interest Expenses 18.59 522.59

Total 18.59 522.59

Note 23 : Depreciation

I I I • I

Depreciation of ROUA 458.23 742.25

Total 458.23 742.25

Note 24 Other Expenses

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Rates& taxes (BGCommission+ ROC) - -

Deferred Leaseexpenses 20.78 12.96

Prov.-Doubtful Debts 1.23

Auditor's Remuneration

-Statutory Audit 0.50 0.50

-Other services 0.90 0.80

MiscellaneousExpenses 7.71 5.88

Total 31.11 20.13

.~
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25.Computation of Basicand Diluted EarningsPerShares

Particulars Units 2020-21 2019-20
Profit after tax Rs.in lakhs 165.12 388.36

The Weighted average number of Equity shares
No. 10000 10000

for Basicand Diluted EPS

Earningsper Equity share (Basic& Diluted) Rs.In lakhs 1651.23 3883.60

26. Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116, Leases and applied the standard to the lease

contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative

adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the

lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and

the ROUassetat its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of

the lease, but discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and

therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report

for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' assetof Rs.4406.24

Lakhs& a lease liability of Rs.4742.51 Lakhs.The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting to

Rs.336.26 Lakhswas debited to retained earnings, net of taxes.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leasesof similar assets in similar economic environment

with a similar end date

2. Excludedthe initial direct costs from the measurement of the ROUassetat the date of initial application.

3.Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.

Accordingly, Ind AS116 isapplied only to contracts that were previously identified as leasesunder Ind AS17.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2D19is 11.50%.

The changes in the carrying value of ROUassetsfor the year ended March 31, 2021 are asfollows:

Rs. In takhs

Particulars FY202()"21 FY2019-20

Opening ROUAssets 4,858.25 4,406.24

Addition - -

Deletion - -
Depreciation During The Year (458.23) (742.25)

Remeasurements of lease liabilities during the Year (4,400.02) 1,194.26

Cosing ROU Assets - 4,858.25

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROUassets is included under depreciation and amortization

expense in the Statement of Profit and loss.
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The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 is as follows

Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars As at March31,2021 As at March31,2020

Lease Liabilities (Current) - 722.04

Lease Liabilities (Non- Current) - 4,218.14

Total - 4,940.17

The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Opening Lease Liabilities 4,940.17 4,742.51

Interest Costduring the Year 18.07 522.56

Remesuirements of Lease Liabilities during the Year (4,684.25) 680.85

Minimum Lease Payment (273.99) (1,005.75)

CosingLeaseLiabilities - 4,940.17

TheCompany does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets

are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities asand when they fall due.

27. Related Party Disclosure

As required under Ind AS24 "Related Party Disclosures" are given below:

I. Listof RelatedParties

A. Investee Companies

a) Future lifestyle FashionsLimited

b) Travel Retail ServicesPrivate limited

B. Fellow Subsidiaries

a) Future Speciality Retail Limited

b) FLFLTravel Retail West Private limited

c) FLFLTravel Retail BhubaneswarPrivate limited

d) FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited



FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Private Limited

(Ii) Transaction with related Parties (Rs. In Lakhs)

FLFL
FLFL FLFL

Future
Travel

Future Travel
Travel Travel

CYI Lifestyle
Retail

Speciality Retail
Retail Retail

Nature of Transactions
PY Fashions

Services
Retail West

Bhubane Luckno

Limited
Private

Limited Private
swar w

Limited
Limited

Private Private

Limited Limited

SubConcessionFeesIncome CY 13.44 70.91 17.91 - - -
PY (47.42) (259.02) (65.54)

Reim. of ExpensesReceived CY 0.53 3.42 0.67 - - -
PY (0.74) (5.17) (1.09) - - , -

LoansGiven CY - - - - - 25.00

PY - - - (325.00) (21.00) US.OO)
LoansGiven ReceivedBack CY - - - 152.00 - -

PY - - - (173.00) (21.00) (15.00)

Interest Income on Loan CY - - - 6.50 - 0.58

PY - - - (13.48) (0.56) t, (Q.24)

LoanTaken CY - - - 27.00 10.00 -
PY - - - - (12;00)

Loan Taken Repaid Back CY - - - 27.00 10.00 -
PY - - - - (12.00

Interest Expenseon Loan CY - - - 0.18 0.34 -
PY - - - - (0.03) -

Receivableason March 31st CY (1.55) 13.68 0.25 - - 25.53

PY (6.65) (29.65) (9.29) (160.05) - -
Payableason

March 31st CY 111.40 69.81 - - - -

PY (111.40) (69.81) - - - -
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28. capital Management

The Companymanages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximizing

the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of

the Company consists equity of the Company (comprising issued capital & retained earnings). As on March

31,2021 company does not have any debt.

-_ .. --_-_ .. ..---.---- ---"'--- .. .-
Particulars As at March As at March

-- . __ __ 3!~021 31,2~~
Total debt 0.00 -
Less: cash and bank balances 36.33 5.43
Net debt

---
(36.33) (5.43)

Equity 134.13 (30.99)
Net debt to equity ratio (0.27) 0.18

(In Lakhs)

categories of financial instruments

Particulars As at March As at March

31,2021 31,20(20

Financialassets

(i) Measured at Amortized Cost

Cashand bank balances 36.33 5.43

Trade Receivables 245.33 127.78

Inter Corporate Deposits 2553 160.05

(ii) Measured at FairValue
1--
Loans 170.18 91.22

Financial liabilities

_1!LMeas~~d at ~mortized yalue -_._-------- t---- ..._._---_
Trade Payables 233.23 294.88

LeaseLiabilities - 4940.17---._----_._--- ..._-----
Other Financial Liabilities 222.14 222.14

(In lakhs)

29. Financial RiskManagement objectives

Riskmanagement policies and systems are reviewed re.gularlyto reflect changes in the market conditions

and the Company's activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate

the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

• Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. As on March 31't, 2021 company is not

exposed to Interest rate Risk
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• Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will fail in meeting its obligations associated with its

financial liabilities. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have

sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.The Company

monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet

operational needs.

30. Pre-Closure of Concession Agreement with Airports Authority of India, Guwahati

AsCOVID-19emerged asan unprecedented black swan event and dealt a crippling blow to the entire travel

and tourism industry, retail and food and beverage industry not only in India but in the entire world. The

disruptions that it causedare acrossthe entire value chain i.e. airline, hotels, restaurants, and aslew of other

indirect providers and the samehasmade our businesscome to a grinding halt. Though airports had partially

opened, the customer movement had been drastically low and even with these small numbers realistically

there had been no sales as expected. This was due to the fact that the customers are very reluctant and

scared to buy at any outlet at the airport. Underthese current circumstances, it was very difficult even to

cover basiccosts like utilities and wages. There was a huge operation losseven without Minimum Monthly

ConcessionFeeand CAMcharges.The management therefore decided to terminate the LeaseAgreement

In the view of currently high commercials and continuing uncertainties post Corona pandemic and difficulties

to retain existing Sub-Concessionaires,Company taken a decision to Exit from the ConcessionAgreement

with Airports Authority of India, Guwahati by January 22nd, 2021. A Termination Notice hasbeen served to

Airports Authority of India, Guwahati

Company have an option to rebid with Airports Authority of India, Guwahati in line with sales projections

post Covid-19 to re-commence businessoperations with revised commercials. The decisions shall be taken

by Management in due course

As per our report of even date attached

For NGS& Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F.R.No.:119850W)

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

~
Ashok A.Trivedi

Partner

Membership No.: 042472

> r ~ _.J.J.,_~o.~
Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN-07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN-05283630

Mumbai

June23, 2021.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of

FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited, (lithe

Company") which comprise the BalanceSheet asat March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss(including

Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the

period ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information (hereinafter referred to as lithe financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 'prescribed under

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind

AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified

under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs).Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI'sCode of Ethics. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial

statements.

Emphasis of Matter:

We draw attention to Note no.29 of the statement, which describes management's assessment of the impact

of the COVID19 pandemic on the financial results of the company.

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate.

B - 46, 3'd Floor, Pravasi Estate, V N Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063.
Tel.: +91.22.49084401 I Email: info@ngsco.in

www.ngsco.in
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report

including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and

Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is

to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,

financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

accordance with the Ind ASand other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assessthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements

may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our

audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected

to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (lithe Order") issued by the Central

Government in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the

statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued there under.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2021, and taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and

the operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B" our report

express an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company's

financial control over financial reporting.
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with requirement of section 197(16) of the Act as amended:

i. The Company has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration in accordance with

Provision of section 197 of Companies Act 2013

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanation given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations, which will have an impact on its

financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For NGS& CO.llP.
Chartered Accountants

~~NO.: 1198S0W~~B~~O'«"¢
AshoK A. Trivedi {~ I\tRJMBAI "*
Partner ~~ ~

Membership No. 042472 ~~ i0$:-~
Mumbai ~~<;:_~%}
June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADT5645
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Annexure - A to the Auditor's Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow

Private Limited on the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2021, we report that:

i. The Company does not have any tangible fixed asset. Therefore, provision of paragraph 3(i) of the

order are not applicable.

ii. The Company is in the business of sub leasing properties and does not have any physical Inventory.

Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(ii) ofthe order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the, Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

Therefore, paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and

investments made.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the period and does not have any

unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2021. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(v) of the order is not

applicable to the Company.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed the

maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the business activities carried

out by the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of

undisputed statutory dues including Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material

statutory dues, as applicable, have been regularly deposited during the period by the company with

the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of

Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance and Custom Duty.

a. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable

in respect of Income tax, Goods and Service Tax, cessand other material statutory dues were

in arrears as at March 31,2021, for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

b. (c) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of

Income Tax which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any

dispute.

viii. The company has not taken any loans or Borrowings from Financial Institution, Banks or Government

or has not issued any debentures Therefore, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

ix. Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, the

Company has not taken any term loan, so paragraph 3(ix) of the order is not applicable.
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x. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to

us, no fraud by the Company or the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported

during the course of our audit.

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the company, the Company has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration in accordance

with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Therefore paragraph 3(xi) of the

order not applicable.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a

nidhi company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of

the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial

statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provision of section 177 of

Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the period.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or

persons connected with him. Therefore, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934.

For NGS & CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 119850W

~
Ash6k A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADT5645
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Annexure - B to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private

Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the

Company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by

ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable

to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessedrisk. The procedures selected depend on

the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets

of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at

March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For NGS& CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 119850W

~
Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADT5645



FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited

BalanceSheet AsAt March 31, 2021

Particulars Note No As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

A ASSETS

Non-Current assets

(a) Right to use leased hold assets 3 - 3,187.46

(b) Financial assets

(i) Loans 4 78.63

(c)Other Non Current assets 5 56.60

Total Non· Current Assets 3,322.69

Current assets

(a) FinancialAssets

(i) Trade receivables 6 188.51 66.44

(ii) Cashand cashequivalents 7 20.29 27.43

(b) Other Current assets 8 160.00 151.24

Total Current Assets 368.80 245.12

Total Assets 368.80 3,567.81

B LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

Equity

(a) Equity Sharecapital 9 1.00 1.00

(b) Other Equity 10 (331.24) (542.30)

Total equity (330.24) (541.30)

Liabilities

Non-Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Other Financial Liabilities 11 245.70

(ii) LeaseLiabilities 12 2,877.27

Total Non - Current Liabilities - 3,122.97

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade Payables 13 170.15 344.53

(ii) Short term advances 14 281.91 95.23

(iii) LeaseLiabilities 15 . 504.64

(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 16 245.70 .

(b) Other Current liabilities 17 1.28 41.74

Total Current Liabilities 699.04 986.14

Total Equity and liabilities 368.80 3,567.81

CRs.in lakhs)

Asper our Report of even date attached

For NGS& CollP

Chartered Accountants

(F.R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June23, 2021

SureshSadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

,DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars Note No FY2020-21 FY2019 20

REVENUE

(a) Revenue from operations 18 229.18 740.16

(b) Other Income 19 420.22 434.19

Total Revenue 649.40 1,174.36

EXPENSES

(a) Cost of Services 20

(b) Finance costs 21 27.65 403.99

(e) Depreciation 22 368.71 586.19

(d) Other expenses 23 41.99 46.78

Total Expenses 438.35 1,036.96

Profit/(Ioss) before tax 211.06 137.39

Tax Expense -

Profit/(Ioss) after tax 211.06 137.39

Other comprehensive Income(OCl)

Total comprehensive Income 211.06 137.39

Earnings per equity share of FaceValue Rs. 10 each

(1) Basic 2,110.56 1,373.94

(2) Diluted 2,110.56 1,373.94

fRS. in Lakhs)

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS&Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F. R. No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

M.No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 23, 2021

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retaillucknow Private limited

CashFlow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

A CashFlow From Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax 211.06 137.39

Adjusted For:

Non Cashincome and Expenses

Interest Income - -

Finance Cost 27.65 403.99

Depreciation & Amortization 368.71 586.19

Deferred Expense 17.51 10.66

Deferred Interest Income (22.34) (8.10)

Remeasurement of LeaseLiabilities (360.87) (424.64)

Operating (Loss) Before Working Capital Changes 241.72 705.50'

Adjusted For:

Increase Or (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 0.00 (123.03)

Increase Or (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (40.46) 27.73

Increase Or (Decrease) in Trade Payables . (174.38) 198,Q3

(Increase) Or Decrease in Other Current Assets (95.39) (172.78)

(Increase) Or Decrease in Trade Receivables (122.07) (38.39)

Proceeds from Security deposits 140.06 -

CashGenerated From Operations (50.52) 597.05

Tax Paid 86.64 99.49

Net CashFrom Operating Activities 36.11 696.54

B CashFlow From Investing Activities

Interest Income - -

Net Cash(Used In) Investing Activities - -
C CashFlow From Financing Activity

Proceeds from Issueof shares - -

Principal portion of the lease liability payment (202.29) (365.46)

Interest portion of the lease liability Payment (15.00) (39!1..18)

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 175.00 90.00

Finance Cost (0.97) (7.59)

Net CashProvided By Financing Activity (43.25) (674.22)

Net Increase in Cash& CashEquivalents (A+B+C) (7.14) 22.31

Opening Balance of Cash& CashEquivalents 27.43 5.12

Closing Balance of Cash& CashEquivalent 20.29 27.43

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS& Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F. R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalfof Board of Directors

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 23, 2021-

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited

Statement of Changesin Equity For the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

A Equity ShareCapital

(i) Opening Balance 1.00 1.00
(ii) ChangeDuring the Year

IssueOf Equity Share 0.00 0.00

ClosingBalance 1.00 1.00

B Other Equity

Retained Earning

Opening Balance (542.30) (281.33)
Profit for the year 211.06 137.39
Impact on account of adoption of INOAS116 - (398.36)
ClosingBalance (331.24) (542.30)

Total Other Equity (331.24) (542.30)

As per·our Report of even date attached

For NGS& CoLLP

Chartered Accountants

(F. R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ash"'o'kA. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

SureshSadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director



FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited

NOTESTO THE STANDALONE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS FORTHEYEARENDEDMARCH 31, 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUTTHECOMPANY

FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Pvt. Ltd. ("The Company") isa company incorporated in India under the provisions

of Companies Act, 2013 on May 30, 2018. The registered address of the Company is located at Knowledge

house, Shyam nagar, Off. Jogeshwari- Vikhroli link road, Jogeshwari (East) Mumbai - 400060.The Company

is engaged in the business of sub leasing area at Lucknow Airport. The Financial Statements were approved

for issue by the Board of Directors on June 23, 2021. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees

(~) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs except where otherwise indicated.

2. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1. Basis of Preparation and Presentation

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments,

which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting

policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets

and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating

cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based

on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12

months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items

included in the financial statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Company operates (the 'functional currency').

2.2. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with customer and

excludes amount collected on behalf of third parties including taxes. Revenue is recognized upon

transfer of control of promised product and services to customer in an amount that reflects the

consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those product or services.

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised as they are rendered based on

arrangements with the customers.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and

requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original

contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or

transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is

revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.



FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is

accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate

applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Information about major customers

Revenue arising from two customers amounting to Rs.79.71lakhs, exceeds 10% of Revenue from

operations of the company.

Name of Customer Revenue generated

(Rs. In lakhs)

Future Retail Limited Rs.41.17 lakhs.

Travel Retail Services Pvt. Ltd. Rs.38.54 lakhs.

2.3. Taxes

Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from' profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The

Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of

taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax

assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profits will be available against those deductible temporary differences which

can be utilised. Such deferred tax ~ssets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary

difference rises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and

liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In

addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the

tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
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the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax

consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to

items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the

current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

2.4. Lease

The Company as a lessee

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease

adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably

certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-Iease basis

and thereby assesseswhether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the

contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any

significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the

termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to company's operations ta king

into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The

lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current

economic circumstances.

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for spaces. The Company assesses

whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if

the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration. To assesswhether a contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset the Company assesseswhether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified

asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the assetthrough

the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. At the date

of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a

corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leaseswith

a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low

value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight

line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease arrangement includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end ofthe
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that

they will be exercised.

The 'ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease

liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease

plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basisover the shorter

of the lease term and useful life ofthe underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
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recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the

fair value lesscost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the

asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such

cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CashGenerating Unit (CGU)to which the asset

belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease

payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not

readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these

leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROUasset if

the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination

option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as an operating lease. The

Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income. The Company is

an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It

assessesthe lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from

the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to

which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an

operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Compa.ny applies Ind AS 115

Revenue from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

2.5. Earnings per share.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to the owners of the

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in determination of basic earnings per share to

take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with

dilutive potential equity shares, and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that

would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.6. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of

qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready

for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets

are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.
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2.7. Provisions, contingent liability and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or

constructive obligation that can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by

discounting (when the effect of the time value of money is material) the expected future cash flows

at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the liability.

Contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or it is probable but no reliable

estimate is possible. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in financial statements however

disclosed. Similarly, contingent assets are not recognised however disclosed.

2.8. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets primarily

comprise of Loans, Deposits, Trade Receivables and Cash and Bank balances. Financial liabilities

primarily comprise of Trade and Other Payables.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets/ issue of financial liabilities are added to

the fair value of the financial assets/ subtracted from fair value of financial liabilities on initial

recognition, except for financial asset/ liability is subsequently measured at fair value through profit

or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition all financial assets (other than investment in equity instruments and

derivative instruments) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. All financial liabilities (other than derivative liabilities), subsequently after initial.

recognition, are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The Company has not

designated any financial asset or financial liability as fair value through profit or loss (UFVTPLU).

Impairment of financial asset

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial

assets measured at amortised cost, Trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash

or other financial asset.

Expected credit lossesare the weighted average of credit losseswith the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are

due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company

expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate . ...-_~_-

~
~~5..~~~.
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The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the

lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly

since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since

initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an

amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

For trade receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime

expected credit losses.

Derecognition of financial asset

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another party.

2.9. Operating Segment

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments', the Company's

business activity falls within a single operating segment, namely Space leasing.

2.10. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

In the course of applying the accounting policies, the Company is required to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects

current and future periods.

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate

valuation techniques and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair

values.

2.11. Fair Value Measurements

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting

purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable

data to the extent it is available. Where Levell inputs are not available, the Company engages third

party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate

valuation techniques and inputs to-the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair

values.
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Notes To Financial Statements

Note 3 : Right to use leased hold assets
Particular s

As at March 31. 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Right to use leased hold assets 3,187.46
Total 3,187,46

Note 4 loans

Note 5 Other Non Current Assets

Partir ular s ..
. As at March 31 2021 As at March 31 2020

Prepaid Exp. Deferred lease expense 56.60
Total 56.60

Note 6 Trade Receivables
Partrcularv

As at March 31, 202l A'.>at March 31,2020

Unsecured and considered good

Outstanding for a period of more than Sixmonths from the date they are due for payment 25.04 3.39
Other Debtors considered good 164.55 63.05
Doubtful (1.08)
Total 188.51 66.44

..

Note 8' Other CurrentAssets
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Other Current assets
Total

160.00
160.00

151.24
151.24

*'ncludes statutory dues

Note 9 : Equity Share Capital
Particulars As at M,HCh31 2021 As at March 31,2020

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

Authorised
10,000 Equity Shares of RS.10/· each. 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/· each fufly paid up 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

, . 10,000" 1.00 10,000 1.00



(a) Reconciliation of number of shares:

Partir ular s As at March 31 2021 As at M.lr(h H, 2020

,
~ No. of Shares No. of Shares

At the beginningof the year 10,000 10,000

Add: Issuedduring the year

At the end olthe year 10,000 10,000

(b) Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value Rs. 10/- each. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In

the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the

NJIllC of Shareholders Asat Marth 31.2021 As at March 31 2020
- - . . - . ' .

No. of %of No. of %of

Shares held Holding Shares held Holding

Future lifestyle FashionsLimited 5,100.00 51.00% 5,100.00 51,00%

Travel Retail Services Private Limited 4,900.00 49.00% 4,900.00 49,00%

·Total· 10,pOO.OQ , - 100% 10,000.00 100%

(d) Shared held by holding Company: Nil:

Note 10 Other Equity

Partrcufar s As at March 31, 2021 As at March H 2020
- .

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance

Profit for the year
Impact on account of adoption of IND A5 116

Closing Balance

(542,30) (281.33)

211.06 137.39

(398.36)

(331.24) (542.30)

(331.24) (542.30)Total

Note 12 Lease Liability (Non Current)

Par nr ular s As at March 31 2021 A", at March 31,2020- ,

Le.ase liability on leased hold assets

Total 2,877.:27-_

Note 13 Trade Payables

Particular'> As at March 31 2021 As ,1\ March 31,2020
- .

Trade Payables 344.53170.15

Total 170.15 344.53

Note 14 Short term advances- ' ... .,. ~...'- ,'~,,- , ~_'" ~. ",,~ ..
Particulars 1\5 at MJrch 31, 2021 As Jt March 31,2020

Inter corporate deposits

Total 281.91 95.23

Note 15 Lease Liability (Current)

P.ITtlcul.Jrs As at March 31 2021 As at M ..:lfch 31, 2020

[ease liability on leased hold assets

Total 504.64



Note 17 Other Current liabilities

Note 18 : Revenueform Operations

Sub Concession Fees: .. 229.18 740.16
Total 229.18 740.16

Note 19 Other Income

PJrtltubr'> FY 2020 21 FY 201920
Interest Income 42.94 7.95
Interest on IncomeTaxRefund 2.01
Remeasurementof lease Liabilities 360.87 424.64
Other Income 14.40 1.61
Total 420.22 434.19

Note 20 : Cost of Sendees

rConcession fees .1 . i
Partir ular s ~ FY202D 21. FY101920

Total

Note 21 : FinanceCosts

Interest Expenses 21.65 403.99
""tal . 27.-65 '403.99

Note 22 : Depreciation

Depreclatlon of ROUA 586.19368.71
-'Total 586.19'368:71
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24 Computation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Shares

Particulars Units 2020-21 2019-20
Profit after tax Rs. in lakhs 211.06 137.39

The Weighted average number of Equity shares
No. 10000 10000

for Basicand Diluted EPS

Earnings per Equity share (Basic & Diluted) Rs.In lakhs 2110.56 1373.94

25. Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116, Leases and applied the standard to the lease

contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative

adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the

lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and

the ROUasset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of

the lease, but discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and

therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report

for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of Rs.3,397.33

Lakhs & a lease liability of Rs.3795.69 Lakhs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting to

Rs.398.36 Lakhswas debited to retained earnings, net of taxes.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar' economic environment

with a similar end date. .
2. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the ROUasset at the date of initial application.

3.Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.

Accordingly, Ind AS116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 11.50%.

The changes in the carrying value of ROUassets for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Rs In Lakhs

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Opening ROUAssets 3,187.46 3,397.33

Addition - -

Deletion - -

Depreciation DuringThe Year (368.71) (586.19)

Remeasurements of Lease Liabilities during the Year (2,818.75) 376.32

Closing ROU Assets - 3,187.46
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The aggregate depreciation expense on ROUassets is included under depreciation and amortization

expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 is as follows

Rs In Lakhs

Particulars As at March 31. 2021 As at March 31. 2020

Lease Liabilities (Current) - 504.64

Lease Liabilities (Non- Current) - 2,877.27

Total - 3.381.91-

The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Opening Lease Liabilities 3,381.91 3,795.69

Interest Cost during the Year 15.00 391.18

Remesuirements of Lease Liabilities during the Year (3,179.62) (48.32)

Minimum Lease Payment (217.29) (756.63)

Oosing Lease Liabilities 0.00 3.381.9-1

The Company doesnot face a sigrrlficantliquidttv risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets

are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

26. Related Party Disclosure

As required under Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are given below:

I. List of Related Parties'

A. Investee Companies

a) Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited

b) Travel Retail Services Private Limited

B. Fellow Subsidiaries

a) Future Speciality Retail Limited

FLFLTravel Retail West Private Limitedb)

c)

d)

FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited

FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Private Limited
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(Ii) Transaction with related Parties (Rs. In Lakhs)

Travel
FLFL

FLFLTravel
Future Future Travel

Lifestyle
Retail

Speciality Retail
Retail

Nature of Transactions CY/PY Services Guwahati, Fashions Retail West

Limited
Private

Limited Private
Private

Limited
Limited

Limited

Sub Concession Fees CY 7.67 38.54 13.26 - -
PY (24.36 (122.66) (35.64) - -

Reim. of Expenses reed. CY 0.67 3.82 1.02 - -
PY (1.12) (5.87) (1.83) - -

Loan Taken CY - - - 150.00. 25.00

PY - - - (366.22) (15.00)

Loan Taken Repaid CY - - - - -
PY - - - (276.22) (15.00)

Interest Expense on Loan CY - - - 12.07 O~58

PY - - - (11.09) (0.24)

Receivable as on March

31st CY (1.04) 9.84 0.35 -

PY (4.06) (3.05) (0.11) - -
.-

Payable as on March 31st CY 88.33 58.01 - 256.38 25.53

PY (88.33) (58.01) - (95.23) -
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27. capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximizing

the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of

the Company consists equity of the Company (comprising issued capital & retained earnings). The Company

monitors capital using a ratio of 'net debt' to equity. The Company has Short Term debt of Rs.281.91 lakhs as

at 31't March 2021

Particulars As at March 31,

2020

Equity

261.62
(330.24)

••••••••••••••••••••_ m••••__••• _·._·· •• •• •• •• • •••• ••__ _••••••_••••••__•••• •••••••••••••••••••__•••••__•••••__._•••••••__•••••••••••_••••••__••••_ •••••_._._ ._••__ ._._••_•••••__••:•••__ •••• •• ~ ••••_._

Net debt to equity ratio (0.79)

............ -.......... .. __ _....... . _ _ __ _ _

Total debt

As at March 31J

2021

Less:cash and bank balances

...................._ _ _ _ _ _.. . _ - -
281.91 95.23

........._ - _ .._ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ .-._ ..__ _ _-_ - - _ .

20.29 27.43
....- - -............. _ _ _ 1- _ _........ _ ..

Net debt

categories of financial instruments

67.80
•••••••••••••••••••••u••••••••••_•••••••••••

(541.30)
...........,.._ _ _ .

(0.13)

( In lakhs)

Particulars As at March

31,2020

Financial assets
·····(ij-Measured··atAmorti~ecfCOst···- ..· - ..
1.._'-"' : , :.: : :._:. :. : : :c :..::: c c _: : ..:.._ .. _ - - - -. _ ..j - _ _ - - - - -- - ..

Cash and bank balances 20.29 27.43
.uu••••••••••••••••••• _ _ .

Trade Receivables

....Ui"jMeasured ..atFali ...Value
~ ~.~.:.!:..:..:=.=:= =: =.:::: =..: ~=..~.~-..~..:=.:..:::..= - ..- - - ..- - - - - _ - - - ..··..·..···········-..-- 1··-··..·-·····-·····..-···-· ..·- - - - - - - _ .

Loans 78.63

Financial liabilities1---_ _ _ _ - _ - - - .

(i) Measured at Amortized Value~ !.::.!. : : ..:.::::..::.::.=..: ::..:: ::..: : ::.:.:..::..:..:.:.::.::..:: : :::..:=-= - - _ _ -....................·1 _._ _ -_.... . - - - .

Trade Payables

Lease Liabilities

28. Financial Risk Management objectives

188.51 66.44

As at March

31,2021

}?'9.:~?'.. _ ?~~:53 .
3381.91

245.70
281.91 .95.93

245.70

.....__ _ -._-_._--_.__ _ _ -_._._ _ __ .- - - _ __ _ _ _ _ __ _ _.._ _ _ ..__ ._- __ ._.-.._ ..__ _-_ .._-_ -_ __ _ _ _ _ .._-_ --_ .._ _ ..__ ..__ _-
.....I..~.t:_~r.~~r.P.(?_r.~.~~..q.~.P.S'_~il~_ .
Other financial Liability

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions

and the Company's activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate

the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.
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• Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. As on March 31't, 2021 company is not

exposed to Interest rate Risk

• Liquidity rlsk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will fail in meeting its obligations associated with its

financial liabilities. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have

sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.The Company

monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet

operational needs.

29. Pre-Closure of Concession Agreement with Airports Authority of India, Lucknow

As COVID-19 emerged as an unprecedented black swan event and dealt a crippling blow to the entire travel

and tourism industry, retail and food and beverage industry not only in India but in the entire world. The

disruptions that it caused are across the entire value chain i.e. airline, hotels, restaurants, and a slew of other

indirect providers and the same hasmade our business come to a grinding halt. Though airports had partially

opened, the customer movement had been drastically low and even with these small numbers realistically

there had been no sales as expected. This was due to the fact that the customers are very reluctant and

scared to buy at any outlet at the airport. Under these current circumstances, it was very difficult even to

cover basic costs like utilities and wages. There was a huge operation loss even without Minimum Monthly

Concession Fee and CAM charges.

In the view of currently high commercials and continuing uncertainties post Corona pandemic and difficulties

to retain existing Sub-Concessionalres, Company taken a decision to Exit from the Concession Agreement

with Airports Authority of India, Lucknow by January 22nd, 2021. A Termination Notice has been served to

Airports Authority of India, Lucknow

Company have an option to rebid with Airports Authority of India, Lucknow in line with sales projections post

Covid-19 to re-commence business operations with revised commercials. The decisions. shall be taken by

Management in due course

As per our report of even date attached

For NGS& Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F.R.No.: 119850W)

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

~
Ashok A.Trivedi

Partner

Membership No.: 042472

Suresh Sadhwani Vipul Parikh

Mumbai

June 23, 2021.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of

FLFl Travel Retail West Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FLFl Travel Retail West Private Limited, (lithe

Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet asat March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss(including

Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the

period ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information (hereinafter referred to as lithe financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("lnd

AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified

under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs).Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial

statements.

Emphasis of Matter:

We draw attention to Note no.28 of the statement, which describes management's assessment of the impact

of the COVID19 pandemic on the financial results of the company.

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate.

B ·46, 3rdFloor, Pravasi Estate, V N Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai ·400063.

Tel.: +91.22.49084401 I Email: info@ngsco.in

www.ngsco.in
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report

including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and

Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit ofthe financial statements, our responsibility is

to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that

there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,

financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

accordance with the Ind ASand other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assessthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements

may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our

audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected

to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central

Government in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the

statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued there under.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2021, and taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and

the operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B" our report

express an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company's

financial control over financial reporting.
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with requirement of section 197(16) of the Act as amended:

i. The Company has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration in accordance with

Provision of section 197 of Companies Act 2013

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanation given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations, which will have an impact on its

financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For NGS & CO. LLP.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 119850W

~
Ashok'A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADU1783
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Annexure - A to the Auditor's Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the FLFLTravel Retail West

Private Limited on the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2021, we report that:

i. The Company does not have any tangible fixed asset. Therefore, provision of paragraph 3(i) of the

order are not applicable.

ii. The Company is in the business of sub leasing properties and does not have any physical Inventory.

Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(ii) ofthe order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the, Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

Therefore, paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and

investments made.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the period and does not have any

unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2021. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(v) of the order is not

applicable to the Company.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed the

maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the business activities carried

out by the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of

undisputed statutory dues including Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material

statutory dues, as applicable, have been regularly deposited during the period by the company with

the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of

Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance and Custom Duty.

a. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable

in respect of Income tax, Goods and Service Tax, cessand other material statutory dues were

in arrears as at March 31,2021, for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

b. (c) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of

Income Tax which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any

dispute.

viii. The company has not taken any loans or Borrowings from Financial Institution, Banks or Government

or has not issued any debentures Therefore, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

ix. Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, the

Company has not taken any term loan, so paragraph 3(ix) of the order is not applicable.
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x. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to

us, no fraud by the Company or the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported

during the course of our audit.

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the company, the Company has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration in accordance

with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Therefore paragraph 3{xi) of the

order not applicable.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a

nidhi company. Therefore, paragraph 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of

the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial

statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provision of section 177 of

Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the period.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or

persons connected with him. Therefore, paragraph 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 4S-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934.

For NGS & CO. LlP.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 1198S0W

dJtt~
AshcSJ(A. Trivedi
Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADU1783
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Annexure - B to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FLFLTravel Retail West Private

Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the

Company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by

ICAIand deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable

to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessedrisk. The procedures selected depend on

the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets

of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at

March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For NGS& CO. lLP.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 1198S0W

~~
Ashol<A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23,2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADU1783



FlFL Travel Retail West Private limited

BalanceSheet AsMarch 31, 2021

Particulars Note No.
Asat March 31, As at March 31,

2021 2020

A ASSETS

Non-Current assets

(a)Right to use leasedhold assets 3 - 960.90

(b) Financialassets

(i) Loans 4 - 508.75

(c)Other Non Current assets 5 - 15.42

Total Non - Current Assets - 1,485.08

Current assets

(a)FinancialAssets

(i) Trade receivables 6 185.00 408.16

(ii) Cashand cashequivalents 7 244.54 28.36

(iii) Short term advances 8 318.80 162.69

(iv) Loans 9 525.64 -
(b) Other Current assets 10 222.89 596.74

Total Current Assets 1,496.87 1,195.95

Total Assets 1,496.87 2,681.03

B LIABILITIESAN~ EQUITY

Equity

(a) Equity Sharecapital 11 1.00 1.00

(b) Other Equity 12 (611.21) (791.64)

Total equity (610.21 (790.64

Uabilities

Non-Current liabilities

(a) FinancialLiabilities

(i) .Other FinancialLiabilities 13 - -

Total Non - Current Uabilities - -
Current liabilities

(a) FinancialLiabilities

(i) TradePayables 14 1,262.55 1,361.23

(ii) Short term advances 15 - 160.05

(iii) Other FinancialLiabilities 16 687.33 710.42

(iv) LeaseLiabilities 17 1,147.65

(b) Other Current liabilities 18 157.20 92.33

Total Current Uabilities 2,107.08 3,411.67

Total Equity and Uabilities 1,496.87 2,681.03'

('Rs. in Lakhs)

As per our Report of evendate attached

ForNG5& ColLP

CharteredAccountants

(F.R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

AshokA. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June23, 2021

SureshSadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail West Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2021

(a) Revenue from operations

(b) Other Income

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

(a) Cost of Services

(b) Finance Cost

(c) Depreciation

(d) Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(Ioss) before tax

Tax Expense

Profit/(Ioss) after tax

Other comprehensive Income(OCI)

Total comprehensive Income

Earnings per equity share of Face Value Rs. 10 each

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

19
20

21
22 6.95 912.78
23 16.22
24

180.43 662.96

180.43 662.96

180.43 662.96

1,804.27 6;629.62
1,804.27 6,629.62

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS& Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F. R.No. 119850W)

Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail West Private Limited

CashFlow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

A CashFlow FromOperating Activities

Net Profit BeforeTax 180.43 662_96

Adjusted For:

Non Cashincome and Expenses

Interest Income (17.72) (17.13)

Deferred Interest Income (16.89) (59.01)

Deferred Expense 15.42 54.93

FinanceCost 6.95 912.78

Depreciation & Amortization 16.22 2,785.76

Remeasurementof lease liabilities (256.21) (1,155.72)

Operating (Loss)Before Working Capital Changes (71.79) 3184.57

Adjusted For:

IncreaseOr (Decrease)in Other Financialliabilities (23.09) (47.10)

IncreaseOr (Decrease)in Other Current liabilities 64.87 54.46

IncreaseOr (Decrease)in Trade Payables (98.67) 628.96

(Increase)Or Decreasein Other Current Assets 238.80 (815.32)

(Increase)Or Decreasein TradeReceivables 223.16 (249.47)

CashGenerated FromOperations 333.29 275.6.11

TaxPaid 135.05 484.71

Net CashFromOperating Activities 468.33 3240.82

B CashFlow From Investing Activities

Interest Income 17.72 7.95

Short Term Advances (156.11) (153.50)

Net Cash(Used In) Investing Activities (138.39) (145.55}

C CashFlow From FinancingActivity

FinanceCost (6.50) (5.43)

Principal portion ofthe leaseliability payment 53.24 (2507.78)

Interest portion ofthe leaseliability Payment (0.46) (899.30)

Proceedsfrom Short Term Borrowings (160.05) 152.00

Proceedsfrom Issueof shares 0.00 0.00

Net CashProvided By FinancingActivity (113.77) (3260.50)

Net Increase in Cash& CashEquivalents (A+B+C) 216.18 (165.24)

OpeningBalanceof Cash& CashEquivalents 28.36 193.60

ClosingBalanceof Cash& CashEquivalent 244.54 28.36

Asper our Report of even date attached

For NGS& CoLLP

CharteredAccountants

(F.R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

AshokA. Trivedi

Partner

M. No 042472

Place: Mumbai

Date : June23, 2021

SureshSadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630
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FLFLTravel Retail West Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended March 31, 2021

Particu lars FY2020-21 FY2019·20

A Equity Share Capital

(i) Opening Balance 1.00 1.00
(ii) Change During the Year - -

IssueOf Equity Share 0.00 0.00

Closing Balance 1.00 1.00

B Other Equity

Retained Earning

Opening Balance (791.64) (39O.12)
Profit/CLoss}for the year 180.43 662.96
Impact on account of adoption of IND AS 116 - (l,064.47)
Closing Balance {611.21} (,791.64)

Total Other Equity (611.21) (791.~

fRs. in Lakhs)

As per our Report of even date attached

For NGS&Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(F.R.No. 119850W)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

c~
Ashok A. Trivedi
Partner

M. No 042472
Place: Mumbai

Date : June 23, 2021

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN: 05283630



FLFLTravel Retail West Private Limited

NOTESTOTHESTANDALONEFINANCIALSTATEMENTSFORTHEYEARENDEDMARCH31, 2021

1. GENERALINFORMATIONABOUTTHECOMPANY

FLFLTravel Retail West Pvt. Ltd. (liThe Company") is a company incorporated in India under the provisions of

CompaniesAct, 2013 on May 30,2018. The registered addressof the Company is located at Knowledge house,

Shyamnagar, Off. Jogeshwari-Vikhroli link road, Jogeshwari (East)Mumbai - 400060.The Company isengaged

in the businessof sub leasing area at GoaAirport. The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the

Board of Directors on June23, 2021. The FinancialStatements are presented in Indian Rupees(~)and all values

are rounded to the nearest lakhsexcept where otherwise indicated.

2. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOUCIES

2.1. Basisof Preparation and Presentation

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments,

which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis.The accounting

policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets

and liabilities have been classified ascurrent or non-current as per the Company's normal operating

cycle and other criteria asset out in the Division II of Schedule III to the CompaniesAct, 2013. Based

on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12

months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assetsand liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items

included in the financial statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Company operates (the 'functional currency').

2.2. Revenuerecognition

Revenueismeasured basedon the consideration specified in a contract with customer and excludes

amount collected on behalf of third parties including taxes. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of

control of promised product and services to customer in an amount that reflects the consideration

we expect to receive in exchangefor those product or services.

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised as they are rendered based on

arrangements with the customers.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and

requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original

contract, basiswhich the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or

transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is

revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.
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Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is

accrued on a time basis,by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate

applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Information about major customers

Revenuearising from two customers amounted to Rs.5.87 lakhs,exceeding 10%of Revenuefrom

operations ofthe company.

Name of Customer Revenuegenerated

(Rs.ln lakhs)

Future Retail Limited Rs.3.26 lakhs

Travel RetailServicesPvt. Ltd. Rs.2.61lakhs

2.3. Taxes
Income tax expensesrepresents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The

Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of

taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax

assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profits will be available against those deductible temporary differences which

can be utilised. Suchdeferred tax assetsand liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference

rises from the initial recognition (other than in a businesscombination) of assetsand liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax

liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arisesfrom the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assetsare measured at the
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tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,

basedon tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax

consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assetsand liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss,except when they relate to

items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the

current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

2.4. lease
The Company asa lessee

Ind AS 116 requires lesseesto determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease

adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably

certain. The Company makes an assessmenton the expected lease term on a lease-by-leasebasis

and thereby assesseswhether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the

contract witl be exercised. In evaluating the leaseterm, the Company considers factors such as any

significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the leaseterm, costs relating to the termination

of the leaseand the importance of the underlying assetto company's operations taking into account

the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in

future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic

circumstances.

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for spaces. The Company assesses

whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if

the contract conveysthe right to control the use of an identified assetfor a period of time in exchange

for consideration. To assesswhether a contract conveys the right to control the useof an identified

asset, the Company assesseswhether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the

Company hassubstantially a" of the economic benefits from useof the asset through the period of

the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. At the date of

commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a

corresponding lease liability for a" lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,except for leaseswith

a term of 12 months or less(short-term leases)and low value leases.For these short-term and low

value leases,the Company recognizesthe leasepayments asan operating expenseon a straight-line

basisover the term of the lease.

Leasearrangement includes the options to extend or terminate the leasebefore the end of the lease

term. ROUassetsand lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they

will be exercised.

The ROUassetsare initially recognizedat cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability

adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any

initial direct costs lessany leaseincentives. They are subsequently measured at cost lessaccumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

ROUassetsare depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basisover the shorter

of the leaseterm and useful life of the underlying asset. ROUassetsare evaluated for recoverability

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
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recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the

fair value lesscost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unlessthe

asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such

cases,the recoverable amount is determined for the CashGenerating Unit (CGU)to which the asset

belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease

payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not

readily determinable, usingthe incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.

Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROUasset if the

Company changes its assessmentof whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified asfinancing cash flows.

The Company asa Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as an operating lease. The

Company recognises leasepayments received under operating leasesas income. The Company is an

intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It

assessesthe leaseclassification of a sub-leasewith reference to the right-of-use assetarising from the

head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to which

the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifiesthe sub-lease as an operating

lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115
Revenuefrom contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

2.5. Earnings per share

Basicearnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to the owners of the

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in determination of basic earnings per share to

take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with

dilutive potential equity shares, and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that

would have been outstanding assumingthe conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.6. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of

qualifying assets, which are assetsthat necessarilytake a substantial period of time to get ready for

their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assetsare

substantially ready for their intended useor sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they

are incurred.
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2.7. Provisions, contingent liability and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, asa result of a pastevent, the Companyhasapresent legalor constructive

obligation that can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation. Provisionsare determined by discounting (when the effect

of the time value of money is material) the expected future cashflows at a pre-tax rate that reflects

current market assessmentsof the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an

outflow of resourceswill be required to settle the obligation or it is probable but no reliable estimate

is possible. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in financial statements however disclosed.

Similarly, contingent assetsare not recognised however disclosed.

2.8. Financial instruments

Financialassetsand financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets primarily

comprise of Loans, Deposits, Trade Receivablesand Cash and Bank balances. Financial liabilities

primarily comprise ofTrade and Other Payables.

Financial assetsand financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets/ issueof financial liabilities are added to the

fair value of the financial assets/ subtracted from fair value offinancialliabilities on initial recognition,

except for financial asset/ liability is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financialassetsand financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition all financial assets (other than investment in equity instruments and

derivative instruments) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. All financial liabilities (other than derivative liabilities), subsequently after initial recognition,

are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The Company has not designated

any financial asset or financial liability as fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").

Impairment offinancial asset

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial

assetsmeasured at amortised cost, Trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cashor

other financial asset.

Expected credit lossesare the weighted average of credit losseswith the respective risks of default

occurring asthe weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cashflows that are due

to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to

receive (i.e. all cashshortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the

lifetime expected credit lossesif the credit risk on that financial asset hasincreasedsignificantly since

initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial

recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount

equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

For trade receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime

expected credit losses.

Derecognition of financial asset

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another party.

2.9. Operating Segment

Basedon the guiding principles given in IndAS108 on 'Operating Segments', the Company's business

activity falls within a single operating segment, namely Spaceleasing.

2.10. Keysources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

In the course of applying the accounting policies, the Company is required to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assetsand liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.Revisionsto accounting

estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the .revision affects current and future

periods.

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers .to establish the appropriate

valuation techniques and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair

values.

2.11. FairValue Measurements

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting

purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company usesmarket-observable

data to the extent it is available. Where Levell inputs are not available, the Company engagesthird

party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate

valuation techniques and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair

values.
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Notes To FinancialStatements

Note 3 : Right to use leased hold assets

I I

Rightto use leasedhold assets 1 - 1 960.90
Total 1 - 1 960.90

Note 4 • loans

I I I

Unsecuredand consideredgood (NonCurrent}

1SecurityDeposits - 508.75
Total 1 - 508.75

Note 5 • Other Non Current Assets

I I I

PrepaidExp.-Deferredleaseexpense 1 - 15.42
Total 1 - 15.42

Note 6 Trade Receivables

Particulars Asat March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
TradeReceivables

Outstanding for a period of more than Sixmonths from the date they are due for payment 175.58 30.11
Other Debtors consideredgood 10.19 378.05
Doubtful (0.77) -

Total 185.00 408.16

Note 7 • Cashand 'CashEquivalent

I I I

Balanceswith Bank

1On current Account 244.54 28.36
Total 1 244.54 28.36

Note 8 : Short term advances

I I

Unsecuredand consideredgood

Inter corporate deposits 1 318.80 1 162.69
Total I 318.801 162.69

Note 9 : loans

I I

Unsecuredand consideredgood (Current}

SecurityDeposits 1 525.641
Total 1 525.641

Note 10 : Other Current Assets

I I

·Other Current assets 1 222.89 I 596.74
Total 1 222.891 596.74
·Net of statutory dues
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Note 11 : Equity ShareCapital

Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

Authorised

10,000Equity Sharesof Rs.10/-each. 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

Issued,Subscribedand Paid Ul!
10,000Equity Sharesof Rs.10/-eachfully paid up 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 Asat March 31, 2020

No. of Shares No. of Shares

At the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000

Add: Issuedduring the year - -

At the end of the year 10,000 10,000

(b) Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares

The Companyhasonly one classof sharesreferred to asequity shareshaving par value Rs.10/- each.Eachholder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company,the holders of equity shareswill be entitled to receivethe remaining assetsof the Companyafter distribution of

preferential amounts. Thedistribution will be in proportion of the number of equity sharesheld by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than S%shares in

the Company:

Name of Shareholders As at March 31,2021 Asat March 31,2020

No. of %of No. of %of

Sharesheld Holding Sharesheld Holding

Future Lifestyle FashionsLimited 5,100 Sl.oo% 5,100.00 51.00%

Travel RetailServicesPrivate Limited 4,900 49.00% 4,900.00 49.00%

Total 10,000.00 100% 10,000.00 100%

(d) Shared held by holding Company: NIL

Note 12 Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 Asat March 31, 2020

Retained Earnings

Opening .Balance (791.64) (390.12)

Profit/(Loss) for the year 180.43 662.96

Impact on account of adoption of INDAS116 - (1,064.47)

ClosingBalance (611.21) (791.64)

Total (611.21) (791.64)

Note 13 : Other Financial Liabilities (Non Current)

~4MMh@it
Security Deposits

Total

Note 14 : Trade Payables

Trade Payables 1 1262.551 1361.23

Total 1 1,262.551 1,361.23

Note 15 : Short term advances

I I

Inter corporate deposits 1 - 1 160.05

Total- 1 - 1 160.05

Note 16 : Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

SecurityDeposits

I I

687.33 710.42

Total 687.33 710.42
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Note 17 : LeaseLiability (Currentl

I I

lease liability on leasedhold assets I - 1 1,147.65

Total I :l 1,147.65

Note 18 : Other Current Liabilities

I I

Provisionfor Expenses

Other Payables' I
157.05 1

0.15

62.21

30.12

Total 1 157.20J 92.33

'includes statutory dues

Note 19 : Revenueform Operations

I I I • I

SubConcessionFees 9.03 3230.13

Total 9.03 3,230.13

Note 20 Other Income

Particulars FY2020·21 FY2019·20

Interest Income 71.61 79.58

Interest on IncomeTaxRefund 25.14 -
Remeasurementof lease Liabilities 256.21 1155.72

Other Income 26.27 19.34

Total 379.23 1,254.64

~4MMiiHt
Concessionfees

Note 21 : Costof Services

~i ~iTotal

Note 22 : Financecosts

I I I • I

Interest ex enses 6.95 912.78

Total 6.95 912.78

Note 23 : Depreciation

De reciation of ROUA 16.22

I I

Total 16.22

Note 24 Other Expenses

Particulars FY2020·21 FY2019·20

Rates& TaxesIBGCommissionand ROCI - -
Utility FacilityCharges (49.741 4.64

Deferred lease Exp. 15.42 54.93

Sub-ConcessionFeesWaiver of EarlierYear 74.31 -
Store ClosureExpenses 34.30 -
Prov.-Doubtful Debts 0.77 -
Auditor's Remuneration

-Statutory Audit 1.00 1.00

-Other services 1.10 1.30

MiscellaneousExpenses 107.49 61.40
Total 184.66 123.27
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25. Computation of Basicand Diluted EarningsPerShares

Particulars Units 2020-21 2019-20

Profit after tax Rs.in lakhs 180.43 662.96

TheWeighted average number of Equity shares
No. 10000 10000

for Basicand Diluted EPS

Earningsper Equity share (Basic& Diluted) Rs.In lakhs 1804.27 6629.62

26. Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116, Leases and applied the standard to the lease

contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative

adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the

lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and

the ROUasset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of

the lease, but discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and

therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included aspart of our Annual Report for

year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of Rs.7551.'59

Lakhs& a lease liability of Rs.8616.07 Lakhs.The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting to Rs.

1064.47 Lakhswas debited to retained earnings, net oftaxes.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1.Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leasesof similar assetsin similar economic environment with

a similar end date

2. Excludedthe initial direct costs from the measurement of the ROUassetat the date of initial application.

3.Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessmentof which transactions are leases.Accordingly,

Ind AS116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leasesunder Ind AS17.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities asat April 1, 2019 is 11.50%.

The changes in the carrying value of ROUassetsfor the year ended March 31, 2021 are asfollows:

Rs.In Lakhs

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Opening ROUAssets 960.90 7,551.59

Addition - -
Deletion - -
Depreciation During The Year (16.22) (2,785.76)

Remeasurements of LeaseLiabilities during the Year (944.68) (3,804.93)

Closing ROUAssets - 960.90
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The aggregate depreciation expenseon ROUassets is included under depreciation and amortization expense

in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities asat March 31, 2021 is as follows

Rs.ln lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

LeaseLiabilities (Current) - 1,147.65

LeaseLiabilities (Non- Current) - -
Total - 1,147.65

The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Rs.In lakhs

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Opening LeaseLiabilities 1,147.65 8,616.07

Add: Interest Cost during the Year 0.46 899.30

Remeasurements of LeaseLiabilities during the Year (1,200.89) (4,96O.65)

Minimum LeasePayment 52.78 (3,407.08)

Closing LeaseUabilities 0.00 1,147.65

The Companydoes not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets

are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities asand when they fall due.

27. Related Party Disclosure

As required under Ind AS24 "Related Party Disclosures" are given below:

I. List of Related Parties

A. Investee Companies

a) Future Lifestyle FashionsLimited

b) Travel Retail ServicesPrivate Limited

B. FellowSubsidiaries

a) Future Speciality Retail Limited

b) FLFLTravel Retail Lucknow Private Limited

c) FLFLTravel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Limited

d) FLFLTravel Retail Guwahati Private Limited
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(Ii) Transaction with related Parties (Rs. In Lakhs)

FLFL
FLFL

FLFL

Future
Travel

Future Travel
Travel

Travel
Retail Retail

Nature of Transactions
CY/ Lifestyle

Services
Speciality Retail

Bhubanes
Retail

PY Fashions Retail Lucknow ,Guwahati

Limited
Private

Limited Private
war

Private
Limited Private

Limited
Limited

Limited

SubConcessionFees CY 0.18 2.61 0.40 - - -
PY (48.93) (742.24) (95.04) - - -

Reim. Of Expenses CY 0.86 6.12 1.02 - - -
PY (1.88) (15.21) (1.60) - - -

Rent waiver Prior Year CY (0.86) (15.26) (1.86) - - -
PY - - - - - -

LoansGiven
I

CY 150.00 27.00 .- - - - ,

PY - - - (366.22) (68.50) I -
LoansGiven Received CY - - - - 9.50 I 27.00

PY - - - ,(276.22) (5.00) -
Interest Income on Loan CY - - - 12.07 5.47 0.18

PY - - - :1 (11.09) (6.04) -
LoanTaken CY - - - - - -

PY - - - - - (325.00)
LoanTakenRepaid CY - - - - - 152.00

PY - - - - - (173.00)
Interest Expenseon Loan CY - - - - - 6.50

PY - - - - - (13.48)

Receivableas on Mar 31st CY (1.32) 3.37 0.03 256.38 62.47 -
PY (7.44) (74.38) (5.79) (95.23) (67.46) -

Payableason March 31"t CY 347.47 217.82 - - - -
PY (347.47) (217.82) - - - (160.05)
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26. Capital Management

The Companymanagesits capital to ensure that it will be able to continue asgoing concern while maximizing the

return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the

Companyconsistsequity of the Company(comprising issuedcapital & retained earnings).TheCompanymonitors

capital using a ratio of 'net debt' to equity. As on March 31,2021 company does not have any debt.

(In lakhs)

Particulars As at March As at March

31,2021 31,2020

Total debt - 160.05
less: cash and bank balances 244.54 28.36
Net debt (244.54) 131.69

.._ .. "-"'-~--------" ---
Equity 622.45 790.64
1--------- --
Net debt to equity ratio (0.39) 0.17

categories of financial instruments

Particulars As at March As at March

31,2021 31,2020
Financialassets

(i) Measured at Amortized Cost

Cashand bank balances 244.54 28.36.-- ---
Trade Receivables 185.00 I 408.16
Inter Corporate Deposit 318.80 162.69
(ii) Measured at FairValue

loans 525.64 508.75

Financial liabilities

(i) Measured at Amortized Value
..-

Trade Payables 1262.55 1361.23
LeaseLiabilities - 1147.65
Other Financial Liabilities 687.33 710.42
Inter Corporate Deposits - 160.05

(In lakhs)

27. Financial RiskManagement objectives

Riskmanagement policies and systemsare reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and

the Company's activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the

adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

• Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate becauseof changesin market interest rates. Ason March 31't, 2021 company is not exposed

to Interest rate Risk
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• Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will fail in meeting its obligations associatedwith its financial

liabilities. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will havesufficient funds

to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.The Company monitors the

rolling forecasts to ensure it hassufficient cashon an on-going basisto meet operational needs.

28. Pre-Closure of Concession Agreement with Airports Authority of India, Goa

As COVID-19emerged as an unprecedented black swan event and dealt a crippling blow to the entire travel

and tourism industry, retail and food and beverage industry not only in India but in the entire world. The

disruptions that it causedare acrossthe entire value chain i.e. airline, hotels, restaurants, and a slew of other

indirect providers and the same hasmade our businesscome to a grinding halt. Though airports had partially

opened, the customer movement had been drastically low and even with these small numbers realistically

there had been no salesasexpected. Thiswas due to the fact that the customers are very reluctant and scared

to buy at any outlet at the airport. Under these current circumstances, it wasvery difficult even to cover basic

costs like utilities and wages. There was a huge operation losseven without Minimum Monthly Concession

Feeand CAMcharges.

In the view of currently high commercials and continuing uncertainties post Corona pandemic and difficulties

to retain existing Sub-Concessionaires,Company taken adecision to Exit from the ConcessionAgreement with

Airports Authority of India,GoabyJuly 19th, 2020. ATermination Notice hasbeen served to Airports Authority

of India, Goa.

Company havean option to rebid with Airports Authority of India,Goa in line with salesprojections post Covid-

19 to re-commence business operations with revised commercials. The decisions shall be taken by

Management in due course.

As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

For NGS& Co lLP
Chartered Accountants

(F.R.No.:119850W)

Mumbai

June 23, 2021.

s.. ~ -A.\..:oo..~
Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN-07766644

Ashok?. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No.: 042472

Vipul Parikh

Director

DIN-05283630
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

To

FLFLATHLEISURELIMITED

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FLFL Athleisure Limited ("the

Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and

Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of

Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (tithe Act")

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the [Indian Accounting

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (tllnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted

in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2021, and lts profit, total

comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the financial statements section of

our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rulesmade

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate.

Information Other than financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report

including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and

Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

www.ngsco.in
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the

financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and

changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles

generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAswill always detect a material misstatement when it

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assessthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in

our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors

in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate

the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matter in our auditor's report unless law or

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (lithe Order") issued by the Central

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
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are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under

Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March

31,2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting on the

Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting for the reasons stated therein.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance

with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations, which will have an impact on its

financial position in its financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For NGS& CO. LLP
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Annexure - A to the Auditor's Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the FLFL ATHLEISURE

LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, we report that:

i. (a) The Company does not have any Fixed asset. Therefore, paragraph 3(i) (c) of the Order is

not applicable.

ii. (a) As explained to us, management has conducted physical verification of inventory at

regular intervals during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the Management were

reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its business.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies

were noticed on physical verification.

iii. The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the, Companies Act, 2013

(lithe Act"). Therefore, paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans

and investments made.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits as during the year from the public asmentioned

in the provision of Section 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules

framed there under apply. Therefore Paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed

the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the products of

the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of

account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including, Provident Fund, Employees' State

Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax,

cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have been regularly deposited during

the year by the company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable

in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Duty of

Customs, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues

were in arrears as at March 31,2021, for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of

income tax, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of

any dispute.
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viii. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the Company has not obtained any loan from financial institution or bank and hence not

commented upon. The Company has not issued any debentures nor borrowed from

Government as at the Balance Sheet date.

ix. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the clause relating to raising any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year is not applicable to the company.

x. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

given to us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or

employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration.

Therefore, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with

sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been

disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares

during the year in compliance with the requirement of section 42 of the Act and amount

raised has been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with

directors or persons connected with him. Therefore, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not

applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 4S-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act 1934.

For NGS& CO. llP.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.1198S0W

~
Ash'bk-A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23, 2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADV9763
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Annexure - B to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FLFLATHLEISURELIMITED

("the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the

Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI').

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its

business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of

Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls

over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of

internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



NGS
& CO. LLP

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

MUMBAI • INDORE • CHITTORGARH

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are

being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Becauseof the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For NGS& CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.119850W

~
Ashor<A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 042472

Mumbai

June 23, 2021

UDIN: 21042472AAAADV9763



FLFL ATHLEISURE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

(All amounts in INRLakhs,unlessotherwise stated)

Particulars Note
Asat March 31, Asat March 31,

2021 2020
ASSETS

Current assets

Inventories 3 - 100.24
FinancialAssets

Trade receivables 4 3,857.51 4,067.05
Cashand cashequivalents 5 0.87 550

Other current assets 6 84.68 91.33
Total Current Assets 3,943.06 4,264.12

TOTAL ASSETS 3,943.06 4,264.12

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

EquitySharecapital 7 5.00 5.00
Other Equity 8 (28451) 9.00
Total equity (279.51) 14.00
Liabilities

Current liabilities

FinancialLiabilities

Trade payables 9

-Micro & SmallEnterprises 2,656.54 -
-Others 701.32 3,407.04

Other financial liabilities 10 513.37 806.82
Other current liabilities 11 337.33 33.22
Provisions 12 14.02 3.03
Total Current Liabilities 4,222.58 4,250.11

Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,943.06 4,2.64.12

Asper our report of even date attached

The accornpanvmgnotes are forming part of the financial statements

ForNGS & Co.LLP

CharteredAccountants

Firm RegistrationNo.119850W

cJ).li~
Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No.042472

Mumbai

Date:June23,2021

For and on behalf of Boardof Directors

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644



FlFl ATHlEISURE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFITAND LOSSFORTHE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31,2021

(All amounts in INR Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note FY2020-21 FY2019-20

REVENUE

Revenue from operations 13 286.95 3,878.46

TOTAL REVENUE 286.95 3,878.46

EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-trade 126.72 3,361.16

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 14 100.24 (100.24)

Other expenses 15 3.06 605.51

Finance Cost 16 33606 -

TOTAL EXPENSES 566.07 3,866.43

Profit before tax (279.13) 12.03

Current tax 14.39 3.03

Profit for the Year (293.52) 9.00

Earnings per equity share of Face Value of ' 10 each

Basic (') (587.04) 18.01

Diluted (') (587.04) 18.01

The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For NGS& CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.119850c--W--=:==:--.

y:~~~.o(
j, l.f;S~(-o

~ {\.fl:;f ; r/'"j \ '*
Cfi-!I_~ I\~(MUMBA\}i)
Ashok A. Trivedi ~~;.;;~ ~'v)1~>0-__ '(~~1
Partner ~T't:~.;/'

Membership No 042472 ~ DIN: 07766605

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Mumbai

Date: June 23, 2021

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644



FLFL ATHLEISURE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR t.akbs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars FY2020-21 FY2019-20

A CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATINGACTIVITIES

Profit for the year (293.52) 9.00

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Profit to Net Cash Generated by Operating Activities

Income Tax Expenses 14.39 3.03

Cash Generated from operations before working capital changes (279.13) 12.03
Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables 209.54 (4,067.05)

(Increase) in inventories 100.24 (100.24)

(Increase)/Decrease in other assets 6.65 (91.33)

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables (49.18) 3,407.04

Increase in other liabilities 10.66 840.04

Cash generated from operations .(1.23) 0.50
Direct taxes paid (3.41) -

Net cash generated by operating activities (4.63) 0.50

B CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTINGACTIVITIES

Net cash used in by investing activities - -

C CASH FLOWSFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company - 5.00

Net cash (used in)!generated by financing activities - 5.00

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (4.63) 5.50
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5.50 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.87 5.50

As per our report of even date attached

For NGS& CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.1l9850W

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Mumbai

Date: June 23, 2021

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

~
Ashok A. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No.042472



FLFL ATHLEISURE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FORTHE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(All amounts in INRLakhs,unlessotherwise stated)

Particulars Amount

A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Equity Share Capital

Balances as at March 31,2020 5.00

Issueof Equity sharesduring the year -

Balances as at March 31, 2021 5.00

B) OTHER EQUITY

Retained Earning

Balance as at March 31, 2020 9.00

Profit for the Year (293.52)
,

Balancesas at March 31,2021 (284~:5t)
_ .. _" .- -."~

As per our report of evend date attached

For NGS & CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.119850W

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

~
Ash6k ~. Trivedi

Partner

Membership No.042472

Director

DIN: 07766605

Suresh Sadhwani

Director

DIN: 07766644

Mumbai

Date: June 23, 2021



FLFLATHLEISURE UMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

1) CORPORATE INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

FLFLAthlei.sure Ltd (liThe Company") is a company incorporated in India under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013

on May 29, .2019. The registered address of the Company is located at knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off.

Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Jogeshwari (East) Mumbai -400060.The Company is engaged in the business of Trading

of Fashion products. The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 23, 2021.The

Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (~) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs except where

otherwise indicated.

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)under the historical

cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied

consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been classified as

current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of

Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets

for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as

12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items included in the financial

statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the

Company operates (the 'functional currency').

2.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts

collected on behalf of third parties including taxes. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised

products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for

those products or services.

Sale of Goods

The Company deals in fashion products including apparel, footwear and accessories.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have been

shipped to specific location (delivery). A receivable is recognised by the Company when the goods are delivered as this

represents the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is

required before payment is due.



Information about Major Customers

Revenue arising from two customers amounting to Rs.286.95 lakhs, exceeds 10% of Revenue from operations of the

company individually.

Name of Customer Revenue generated

Future Retail Limited Rs.270.39 lakhs.

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited Rs. 16.56 lakhs.

2.3 Taxation

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as

reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in

other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates

that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the

financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally

recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available

against those deductible temporary differences which can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

recognised if the temporary difference rises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of

assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,

deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in

which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets

reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises

from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.

2.4 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to the owners of the Company by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the'

after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and the

weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of

all dilutive potential equity shares.



2.5 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted

average basis. Cost of inventories comprise of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other related cost incurred in

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

2.6 Provisions, contingent liability, and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that

can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting (when the effect of the time value of money is material) the

expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the liability.

Contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources

will be required to settle the obligation or it is probable but no reliable estimate is possible. Contingent liabilities are

not recognised in financial statements however disclosed. Similarly, contingent assets are not recognised however

disclosed.

2.7 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities- Initial recognition.

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financiallia bilities. Financial assets primarily comprise of trade

receivables and cash and bank balances. Financial liabilities primarily comprise of trade and other payables.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets/ issue offinancialliabilities are added to the fa ir vatue ofthe financial

assets/ subtracted from fair value of financial liabilities on initial recognition, except for financial asset/ liability is

subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition all financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. All financial liabilities subsequently after initial recognition, are measured at amortised cost using effective

interest method. The Company has not designated any financial asset or financial liability as fair value through profit

or loss ("FVTPL").

Impairment of financial asset

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at

amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the

weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance

with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the

original effective interest rate. '.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected

credit losses if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk



on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance

for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

For trade receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or

when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

party.

2.8 Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

In the course of applying the accounting policies, the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future periods.

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques

and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair values.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Provisions, liabilities and contingencies

The timing of recognition of provision requires application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances which may

be subject to change

Fair value measurements

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating

the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where

Levell inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques

and inputs to the model. A degree of estimate is required in establishing fair values .

•



FLFL ATHLEISURE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 INVENTORIES As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Stock-in-Trade 100.24

100.24

4 TRADERECEIVABLES(UNSECURED)
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Current

Considered Good

Considered Doubtful

3,857.51 4,067.05

3,857.51 4067.05

5 CASHAND BANKBALANCES
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

In Current Accounts 0.87 5.50

0.87 5.50

6 OTHERASSETS(CURRENT)
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Balancewith Government authorities 84.68 91.33

84.68 91.33

~.

~h



FLFLATHLEISURE LIMITED

NOTESFORMING PARTOF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Allamounts in INRLakhs,unless otherwise stated)

7 EQUITYSHARECAPITAL As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Authorised

Equity Sharesof INR10/- each 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

Equity Sharesof INR10/- each 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

Reconciliation of number of shares:

Equity Share of INR10/- each

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

No.of Shares .. No. of Shares "

At the beginning of the year 50,000 50,000

Add: Issuedduring the year' - -
At the end ofthe year 50,000 50,000

Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one classof equity shares having a par value of INR 10/- per share. Eachholder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

The company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in

the Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts. The distributions will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Name of Shareholders No. of % of No of % of

Shares held Holding Shares held Holding

Future Lifestyle FashionsLimited 49,99 99.99 49,994 99.99



FLFL ATHLEISURE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in INR Lokbs, unless otherwise stated)

8 OTHEREQUITY As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

(284.51)Retained Earning 9,00

(284.51) 9.00
For addition and deduction under each of the above heads refer statement of change in Equity

Nature of Reserves

Retained Earnings

This represents the surplus/(deficit) of the statement of profit or loss, The amount that can be distributed by the Company as

dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the separate financial statements of the Company and also considering

the requirements of the CompaniesAct, 2013,

~ TRADEPAYABLE
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Duesof creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Duesof creditors micro enterprises and small enterprises

701,32

2,656.54

3,407,04

3,357.86 3,407.04

10 OTHERFINANCIALLIABILITIES(CURRENT) M h 3 202 A M h 3 2020As at arc 1, 1 s at arc 1,

Other Payables 513.37 806,82

806.82513.37

-11 OTHERCURRENTLIABILITIES As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

, "Statutory Liabilities

Provision for Expenses

'1

336,11

33.22337.33

12 PROVISIONS(CURRNET) As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

, Provision for Tax '14,02 3,03

3.0314.02

- - .~.



FLFL ATHLEISURE LIMITED

NOTESFORMING PARTOFTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Allamounts in INRiokhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Revenue from Operations FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Saleof Products - Grossof Tax 301.28 4,087.05

Less:Goods & ServiceTax/ Value added Tax/ SalesTax 14.33 208.59

286.95 3,878.46

14 Changes In lnventories of Finished Goods, Work In-Progress and Stock-In-Trade
FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Opening Inventories

FinishedGoods 100.24

Closing Inventories

FinishedGoods - 100.24

100.24 (100.24)

15 Other Expenses FY2020-21 FY2019-20-
Infrastructure Management Fee - 600.00

Professional Fees 0.c:J6 3.32

Statutory Audit Fees 1.05 1.58

Directors Sitting Fees 1.00

Miscellaneous Expenses 0.05· 0.62

- -. .... -:-- ,.: - ._
3.06 605.51

16 Finance Cost FY2020-21 FY2019-20

Interest - Others

Interest on MSMEDDues

1.43

334.63

336.06



FLFL ATHLEISURE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in fNR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17 Payment to Auditors FY2020-21 FY 2019-20

Statutory Audit Fees 1.30 1.25

TaxAudit Fees& Other Services 0.30 0.33

Total 1.60 1.58

18 Eamlngs PerShare

The earnings and weighted average number of Equity Sharesused in the calculation of Basicand Diluted Earningsper share (EPS)are asfollows:

_l.§.. P.artJcula" Units FY2020-21 Units FY2019-20

~ in Lakhs (293.52) ~ in Lakhs 9.00

5 50,000 5 50,000

No. 50,000 No. 50,000

~ (587.04) 18.01

(587.04) 18.01

10 10

Profit attributable to Equity Share holders

Weighted average number of Equity SharesOutstanding for BasicEPS

Weighted average number of Equity SharesOutstanding for Diluted EPS

Earnings per share - Basic

Earnings per share - Diluted

Face value per share

19 Related Party Disclosures
Nameof Related Parties and Nature of Relation.hip:

Holding Company
Future Lifestyle FashionsLimited

Transaction with Related Parties

389.93

600.00

•• . .
Sale

Infrastructure.Management Fee

-~- Statuioty Liabiltv Payment-by Holding cornapanv

20 DuesOf Micro Enterprises And Small Enterprises As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021 2020

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier asat the end of each

accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

Interest due on above.

2,656.54

334.63

21 Segment Information
The Company is engaged In the businessof Branding, Sellingand Distribution of 'Fashion Products' which constitutes a single reporting Segment. Hence

there is no separate reportable segment under Ind AS108 'Operating segment.

22 Financial RiskMana,ement objectives

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company's activities to provide reliable

information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.



Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market Interest rates. As on

March si'', 2020 company is not exposed to Interest rate Risk as there is no debt.

Uquldity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will fail in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The company's approach to managing

liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company monitors the

rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs.

23 capital Mllnapment

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue asgoing concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the

optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists equity of the Company (comprising issued capita;' retained

earnings). The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'net debt' to equity. However, ason 31st March, 2021 the company does not have any debts.

categories of financial Instruments

23 Particulars FY2020 21 FY2019 20

Financial ;wets

(i) Measured at Amortized Cost

Cashand bank balances

Trade Receivables

0.87

3,857.51

5.50

4,067.05

Ananclaillabilities

(I) Measured at Amortized Value

Trade Payables

Other financial Liability

3,357.86

513.37

3,40,.04

806.82
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